
2019 SENATE EDUCATION 
 

SB 2039 

  



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Education Committee 

Sheyenne River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2039 
1/9/2019 

30585 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk: Lynn Wolf 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer. 

Minutes: man; Att. #2- Shawn Wenko Att. #3-

Chairman Schaible: Meeting called to order. Attendance was taken. All present. 

(0:01 :08) Emily Thompson, Legislative Council: The bill came out of the interim taxation 
committee. The committee learned economic development tax incentive, the workforce 
recruitment credit and the internship program credit. The committee learned these incentives 
were very rarely used and received some testimony on the need on some type of incentive 
for our workforce. The committee looked instead at modifying those two tax incentives to 
instead creating some type of scholarship program. Essentially, the bill will create a skilled 
workforce program administered by the BND inconjuction with the ND University System and 
the Workforce Education Advisory Council. The purpose of the program is to attract and 
retain students in high demand workforce areas. It requires the University system and the 
Workforce Education Advisory Council to publish a list of qualifying programs by August 1 st 

of each year. The program is funded by up to $10 million from the BND and requires a dollar 
for dollar match, so the total amount available through this program would be $20 million. 
Scholarships are provided to designated educational programs that can be completed within 
two years. Scholarship funds are paid directly to the institution that is administrating that 
program covering tuition, fees, books, supplies required to complete the program and other 
costs related to compete the degree. There are requirements with the program - a 2.5 grade 
point average, and must stay and work in the state for three years after completion of the 
degree or certificate. An individual that fails to meet these requirements are subject to 
repayment provisions that are specified in the scholarship award agreement. 

(0:04:01) Chairman Schaible: The individual needs to work in the state for three years after 
this and if they don't, there is repayment that needs to be made. Could you explain that for 
us? 

Emily Thompson: the individuals are subject to the repayment provisions provided in the 
scholarship award agreement. They would have to sign documentation with the BND and the 
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BND sets the interest rate and any other provisions they might want the recipient to sign on 
to. 

Chairman Schaible: Other questions? 

Senator Davison: Mr. Chairman and Emily, would a person qualifying for this scholarship 
qualify for other scholarships? 

Emily Thompson: Mr. Chairman and Senator Davison, right now the language on page two 
line 20 denotes this scholarship is intended to assist students in need of education costs and 
can supplement any other financial aid received. 

Senator Davison: It doesn't eliminate them from any other ND scholarship that we supply 
dollars for? 

Emily Thompson: Mr. Chairman and Senator Davison, no it does not. 

Chairman Schaible: Is there any restrictions on the dollar for dollar match? That can come 
from just about anywhere? 

Emily Thompson: Mr. Chairman, there are no parameters in the dollar for dollar match, just 
that is required. The committee left a lot of this to the administrator agency. 

Chairman Schaible: Other questions? Thank you. Other testimony in favor of the bill. 

(0:08:00) John Richman, President of NDSCS: See attachment #1. 

Chairman Schaible: John, in point number two, you said this was a last resort, can you 
explain how that is going to work. 

(0: 12:39) John Richman: What we have seen in the other programs, they have to apply, meet 
the requirements and exhaust all of the other grants - and fill out the FAFSA forms. The yaave 
to exhaust all of the other grants prior to this funding. If a student comes in with a Pell grant, 
that amount is reduced off what is eligible by this program. Whatever is left, we call it the last 
dollar scholarship because it is paying the last dollars of what the program is designed to 
cover. 

Chairman Schaible: So this applied for after that is done? 

John Richman: Correct or at the same time and it has to be calculated. 

Chairman Schaible: Other questions. Thank you. 

(0:14:28) Shawn Wenko, Economic Development Association of ND: See attachment #2. 

Chairman Schaible: Seeing no questions, thank you. Other testimony in favor. 
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(0: 18:48) Mason Sisk, Asst. Executive Director of the Technology Council of ND: See 
attachment #3. 

Chairman Schaible: Mason, the people you work for, do you see them donating to this? And 
if they do donate this dollar for dollar match, I would guess they would want them to go into 
your field, but there are limits to that. Do you see that as a problem? 

Mason Sisk; Mr. Chairman, there has been some discussion and some of our bigger 
companies that are part of our members is Microsoft, which has been part of the discussion. 
They have a lot of interest in a program similar to this - if not this exact program. They have 
expressed that they would like to have people come into our field and that's why it may be 
important to some contributions from other industries as well. Partnering from technology to 
ag or energy or whatever. 

Chairman Schaible: Do you see that as a hindrance to getting contributions? 

Mason Sisk: It could be, we don't see it as hindering the fund from coming in, but I expect it 
to be a topic of discussion among companies that are looking for employees. 

Chairman Schaible: Other questions. Thank you. Other testimony in favor of. 

(0:22:21) Matt Gardner, GNDC: We are the largest business representation organization in 
the state and advocate for business. The concept of this bill is very favorable. The need for 
a greater workforce is going to be the biggest challenge that we have had for some time. On 
their own, some of our membership has already started programs similar to what this bill 
intends to do. I think a statewide program such as this is warranted in the state. I concur with 
what was said today. 

Chairman Schaible: Other testimony in favor of. 

Elroy Burkle, Executive Director of Organized Small Schools: I am a former ag teacher and 
would like to have been able to share with my students when I was teacher. I support this 
bill. 

Chairman Schaible: Other questions. Senator Oban. 

Senator Oban: That was one of my questions - how do we get the information about this bill 
in the hands of the students so they see these opportunities are available? 

Elroy Burkle: Chairman Schaible and Senator Oban: Yes, the counselors would be the critical 
piece, but also your ag teachers would be very important. It will be taken advantage of if the 
word gets to the ag teachers. 

Chairman Schaible: Other questions. Thank you. Other testimony in favor of. 

Amiee Copas, Executive Director of the NDCEL: I stand before you verbal support of this bill. 
We struggle as school leaders to convince our students, sometimes, especially when they 
are gearing and tracking in their interests are really in a skilled workforce career, a lot of times 
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the appeal of a national championship, sometimes sends them to an institution that isn't 
necessarily for them. We struggle at the school level for a great argument about why the 
state supports them and why it is a really good idea to go after their career fields they are 
passion about. Not only does help for the cost for the student, but it helps with the 
conversations we have with students about how critical going into these additional career 
fields and attending not only our four year institutions, but our two year institutions. With that, 
I support this bill as well. 

Chairman Schaible: Other questions. Other testimony in favor of. Any institution testimony? 
I'd like to have the BND come up. I'd like to have you speak to the uncollectable debt. 

Todd Steinman, Chief Business Development Officer, BND: I think the details that we would 
work out fits into the system of how we collect student loans. We don't anticipate any issue 
with bringing this program into our normal collection process. 

Chairman Schaible: Is the amount of money acceptable to the BND? 

Todd Steinman: Mr. Chairman, yes. We do have existing programs that we wish to fund, but 
this gets into our educational mission. 

Chairman Schaible: Other questions. Any other agency testimony. Any testimony in 
opposition to this bill. Hearing none, we'll close the hearing on SB 2039. 

(0:30:54) Senator Oban: Mr. Chairman, did any members of this committee serve on the 
Interim Taxation Committee? 

Chairman Schaible: No. I guess nobody was on was on that committee, but there are three 
other bills that are duplicating this. 

Senator Oban: I had questions about the loan repayment and scholarship programs we have 
on the books -

Chairman Schaible: I have requested an evaluation of SLEDS to do that. We did do one a 
few years back - the optometrists, vegetarians, etc. and the results came back pretty eye 
opening - only 18-19% success rate. That makes it questionable it that is the right track to 
take. That's why I've been trying to rework it. Are they producing the results we are hoping 
for? Other discussion. 

Senator Davison: Is there a maximum a person can apply for? 

Chairman Schaible: I would guess it would be whatever it would take. I assume it is after the 
fact - paying directly to the institution. Maybe we need to look at how all our scholarships 
work. Anything else for discussion, the good of the order? If not, we will see you on Monday. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Schaible: Committee we are going to look at SB 2039. This bill is one of the gap 
scholarship bills. 
 
Senator Davison: I like this bill. It has some matching grant and I feel the matching grant 
from business and industry. These workforce challenges – we need business and industry 
to be engaged – not only at the table, but engaged with their pocketbooks. I think those 
matching dollars is a positive thing. The other thing I like about this is it is a little more 
quantifiable as far as the two-year programs. From a technical standpoint, I like that focus as 
opposed to the previous bill.  
 
(1:53) Chairman Schaible: I agree. This is a kind of scholarship that catches all the other 
ones. This was an idea two and four years ago – they called it a gap scholarship because it 
filled in the gaps for some of the students that didn’t have opportunities to get that. With the 
$10 million that is contributed from the unreserved profits of the BND and the $10 million 
match, you are getting effectively $20 million and only costing the what could possibly be 
state money of $10 million.  
 
(2:41) Senator Davison: In my area of the state, this is going to have a greater impact on 
those kids in the rural communities. We don’t send a lot of kids from Fargo down to NDSCS. 
There are sometimes lots of scholarships for some of the bigger schools that this one has a 
little more focus on students in the rural communities. It may entice kids to go down to an 
NDSCS or Devils Lake. 
 
Senator Oban: Many trades work on contract and based on weather in ND, they will take a 
contract out of state. A bricklayer will go and work outside of the state for a number of months, 
potentially longer. The question I have is would this disqualify them if the individual has to 
work in the state for three years? Do we base this on residency?  
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Chairman Schaible: So, acceptable language would be “if a job is not available, they could 
go out of state? 
 
Senator Oban: It is typically people that can’t work outdoors in the winter in ND.  
 
Chairman Schaible: I understand what you mean, but, how do we ensure that they are 
coming back? 
 
Senator Oban: I believe people that do that, rarely to never, consider themselves a resident 
of that state that they are going to work, but they are not here doing a job for those full three 
years.  
 
Chairman Schaible: If we put in that kind of language, would it deter from passing the bill? 
 
Senator Oban: Maybe that can be determined in adopting the rules of the program. I would 
just hate to disqualify individuals that go into those fields. 
 
Chairman Schaible: Either that or it might be something we could fix next session because 
we would have a little clearer vision of what that would look like.  
 
Senator Davison: If they are working for a ND company and they go out of state to work for 
that company, I don’t think you can fix every exception in a bill. I have an issue with it if they 
don’t come back here because part of the year they are not paying ND income tax.  
 
Senator Oban: However, sometimes those employers are based in MN. A lot of labor folks 
aren’t even – their employer is in MN, but they work and live in ND.  
 
Chairman Schaible: We have a lot of company presence in ND that aren’t based in ND.  
 
Senator Davison: They still are paying ND income tax. That’s why it is on there so we are 
recouping some of those dollars.  
 
(7:40) Chairman Schaible: So, are you looking at an amendment? 
 
Senator Oban: I wanted the minutes to reflect that I hope we can find some rules in 
implementing it if it passes that would accommodate for that situation.  
 
Chairman Schaible: I don’t disagree with your concerns. If we get to much “in the weeds” 
then it gets... Other discussion. 
 
Senator Rust: How many bills that deal with this kind of issue do we have? Over the two 
bills, I do prefer this one because the industry is involved.  
 
Chairman Schaible: I can’t tell you, I know there are some on the House side. Committee 
do you need more time to consider this bill? Or should we take action? 
 
Senator Davison: Motion to Do Pass on SB 2039 and refer to Appropriations. 
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Oban: Second.  
 
Roll call taken: 
 
Yeas: 7; Nays: 0 
 
Motion Carries. 
 
Senator Davison will carry the bill.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 6-09 of the NDCC, relating 
to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship program; to 
provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer.  
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Testimony of Ellen Huber 
2. Testimony of Mason Sisk 
3. Proposed Amendment (by Rod Backman)  
4. Proposed Amendment (by Eric Hardmeyer)  

 
Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on SB 2039. Roll call was taken. All 
committee members were present except Senator Robinson, Senator Bekkedahl and 
Senator Poolman.  Becky Deichert, OMB and Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council were also 
present.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Committee members should be aware we have a number of bills in 
committee, and we only have 10 days to pass all the bills out by the 18th of February.   
 
 
(2:00) Ellen Huber, Mandan Business Development Director and President of 
Economic Development Association of North Dakota (EDND), testifies in favor of SB 
2039.  (see Attachment #1) 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Section 2 says “This fund is not subject to section 54-44.1-11” which 
is the section that deals with money clawed back if not spent. That section actually shouldn’t 
be in there because it is a continuing appropriation anyway. We have some suggested 
amendments coming. Committee members received emails from Jared Melville from the ND 
Student Association who said he won’t be able to be here, but their association supports this 
bill. 
 
(8:10) Mason Sisk, Assistant Executive Director of the Technology Council of ND 
(TechND), testifies in favor of SB 2039.  (see Attachment #2) 
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(9:40) Matt Gardner, Greater ND Chamber, testifies in favor of SB 2039.   Greater ND 
Chamber is the largest state-wide business advocacy organization in the state. We’re also 
the state affiliate for NAM, the National Association of Manufacturers. We’re here today in 
support of the bill. Our policy committee leading up to session dealt very closely with 
workforce development and the workforce challenges we face in the state. This bill will 
definitely help that. There is no silver bullet to solve this shortage, but this would be a step in 
the right direction. 
 
 
(10:40) Bruce Murry, Director of ND Association of Community Providers (NDACP), 
testifies in favor of SB 2039.   As our workforce diversifies into technology and as we get 
more heavily into behavioral and medical health, I wanted to speak in favor for this initiative.  
 
 
(11:25) Rod Backman, representing University of Mary and University of Jamestown, 
testifies in favor of SB 2039. (see attachment #3) We are supportive of the bill but are 
proposing an amendment for some clarification. I have visited with Senator Schaible, 
Chairman of the Education committee. He had indicated that he is fine with this amendment. 
We’re concerned if our students and the programs that the private schools offer would qualify. 
We didn’t see anything in the language that excluded us; however, in discussions with the 
Bank of North Dakota and with Senator Schaible, the thinking is it would be better if it 
specifically included our students and our programs. That’s the idea behind the proposed 
amendment. Page 1 line 14 after the word “programs” we would insert “at any institution of 
higher education in North Dakota” just to make that clarification. We would request that you 
consider something that would help make that clarification. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Senator Schaible had mentioned that this is something he felt they 
would support. 
 
Senator Mathern: Does this include the Tribal colleges? 
 
Backman: I believe it would. It would be considered an institution of higher education. When 
you’re looking at the issue you are dealing with of skilled workforce, I think it’s important that 
all of the students and programs in the state would receive the same benefit to help that state 
reach its goal. 
 
(14:10) Eric Hardmeyer, President of the Bank of North Dakota (BND), testifies in favor 
of SB 2039. (see attachment #4) The Bank of ND is requesting an amendment. In section 
1, we would flip the accountability in terms of the adoption of rules to put the University 
system first in terms of the primary entity that should adopt rules to develop and implement 
the scholarship program and just include the Bank of ND as a participant in that. The second 
one is under section 4 paragraph 4. Again it’s the same issue where we would take the Bank 
of ND out. Actually I would like to amend the amendment. Talking with the University system, 
we would prefer to have “administered by the North Dakota University System” rather than 
“by the educational institution”. These are minor, technical changes, but it does flip a little bit 
of the responsibility. Overall of course we are supportive of this bill and understand the needs 
to enhance those things to promote workforce development. 
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Chairman Holmberg: The informal change would be “scholarships must be provided in the 
form of a grant administered by the North Dakota University System”? 
 
Hardmeyer: Correct. 
 
Senator Mathern: How many dollars do you anticipate this will take in a biennium from the 
bank?   
 
Hardmeyer: What is proposed is $10M. There is a companion bill in the House, HB 1171, 
which is also $10M. I would guess at some point those two would be merged together. 
Whether $10M is sufficient, I’m not sure, but that is what’s proposed. 
 
Senator Dever: I was initially confused by the fact that it’s a revolving fund, but then I see 
that if somebody doesn’t complete the program or they leave the state, that they claw it back. 
Do we have the ability to collect that from a non-resident? 
 
Hardmeyer: Yes, I would think that that would be part of the overall scholarship agreement 
that in an event of a default of the agreement, we have language that it converts to a dead 
instrument and the Bank of ND would then pursue collection. I don’t see any issue with it with 
them moving outside the state. 
 
Senator Dever: The continuing appropriation revolving fund has to do with those funds being 
clawed back. The appropriation of $10M has to be reauthorized every session then? 
 
 
Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council:  Section 3 of the bill provides a transfer; by its very 
nature, a transfer would be a one-time item, especially since it’s in session law. There’s 
nothing that’s being put in Century Code that requires new money be put into the fund on a 
continuing basis. Once that $10M is expended along with the matching funds provided by 
the private sector, I believe it’s intended to provide a total of $20M because there’s a provision 
that requires a $1 matching fund for each $1 provided by the state. That $10M transfer is just 
a one-time thing. 
 
(19:45) Tammy Dolan, ND University System, testifies in favor of SB 2039.  We in the 
system office do manage other loan forgiveness scholarship programs and other grant 
programs so it makes complete sense and we would be very supportive of the amendment. 
There are some administrative things we would need to work through this that we haven’t 
thought through fully, but we would be supportive of this change and the bill fully.  
 
Senator Gary Lee: With the Eric Hardmeyer’s proposed amendment, does that still include 
the colleges that Mr. Backman was talking about and the Tribal colleges? 
 
Dolan: The programs we administer right now are available to all of the colleges within the 
state and so yes, we would be able to work with that.  
 
Chairman Holmberg closes the hearing on SB 2039. 
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Chairman Holmberg: I will ask Adam or the appropriate person to put together the 
amendments including the sentence about the fund not subject to 54-44.1-11 for our 
committee’s consideration. We won’t have a subcommittee on this. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship 
program (Do Pass as Amended).   
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Proposed Amendment # 19.0924.02001  

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on SB 2039. All committee members 
were present. Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council  and Stephanie Gullickson, OMB were also 
present.   
 
 Chairman Holmberg: There was a proposed amendment # 19.0294.02001. 
 
 Senator Mathern: moved the amendment. 2nd by Senator Bekkedahl.   
 
Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council:  explained what the new amendment would do in this 
bill.  Discussion followed.      
 
Chairman Holmberg: Called for a voice vote. It carried.  
 
 V. Chairman Wanzek: Moved a Do Pass as Amended.  2nd by Senator Grabinger:   
 
  A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea:14; Nay: 0;  Absent: 0.  This will go back to the Education 
Committee. Senator Davison will carry the bill.   
 
The hearing was closed on SB 2039.         
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Adopted by the Appropriations Committee 

February 6, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2039 

Page 1, line 1, replace "two new sections to chapter 6-09" with "a new section to chapter 
15-1 O" 

Page 1, remove lines 5 through 23 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 28 with: 

"SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 15-10 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Skilled workforce scholarship program - Skilled workforce scholarship 
fund - State board of higher education - Continuing appropriation. 

i. There is created in the state treasury the skilled workforce scholarship 
fund. The fund consists of moneys transferred into the fund by the 
legislative assembly, matching funds received, and scholarship 
repayments. Moneys in the fund are appropriated to the state board of 
higher education on a continuing basis for the purpose of providing grants 
to institutions of higher education related to skilled workforce scholarships. 
Institutions of higher education include institutions under the control of the 
state board of higher education, North Dakota nonpublic accredited 
institutions of higher education, and tribally controlled community colleges. 

2. The state board of higher education shall develop policies to administer a 
skilled workforce scholarship program in cooperation with the Bank of 
North Dakota and the workforce education advisory council. The purpose 
of the skilled workforce scholarship program is to attract and retain 
students for professional or technical skills in high demand in this state. 

3. The state board of higher education and the workforce education advisory 
council shall compile a list of qualifying educational programs by August 
first of each year. Qualifying educational programs must be able to be 
completed within four semesters or eight quarters and pertain to the 
technical skills in high demand in this state. 

4. Individuals enrolled in a qualifying educational program in this state may 
apply for a scholarship under this section. Scholarships are limited to the 
amount charged each quarter or semester by the educational institution for 
the tuition, fees, books, and supplies required for the qualifying educational 
program. The scholarships may supplement any other scholarship or grant 
financial aid received by a student to assist the student with the costs of 
the qualifying educational program. 

5. To be eligible for a scholarship under this section, a student shall maintain 
a 2.5 cumulative grade point average, based on a 4.0 grading system. A 
student may not receive scholarships under this section for more than the 
equivalent of four semesters of full-time enrollment or eight quarters of 
full-time enrollment. Upon completion of a qualifying educational program, 

Page No. 1 19.0294.02002 



a student who received a scholarship under this section shall remain and 
work in this state for a minimum of three years. 

6. An individual shall repay the scholarship pursuant to the terms in the 
individual's scholarship award agreement if the individual fails to maintain a 
2.5 cumulative grade point average while enrolled, discontinues 
attendance before the completion of any semester or quarter for which a 
scholarship has been received, or fails to remain and work in this state for 
at least three years following degree or certificate completion. 

7. Each quarter or semester, the state board of higher education shall 
distribute grants to institutions of higher education to provide the amounts 
necessary for the scholarships awarded to the students enrolled in each 
institution. The state board of higher education may distribute grants only 
to the extent that the private sector has provided one dollar of matching 
funds for each dollar of funding provided by the state." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMEN T OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMEN T: 

This amendment consolidates the skilled workforce scholarship program and fund in one 
section of North Dakota Century Code, provides for the State Board of Higher Education to 
administer the program rather than the Bank of North Dakota, and provides other minor 
technical corrections. 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2039: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(1 4 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2039 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace "two new sections to chapter 6-09" with "a new section to chapter 
1 5-1 O" 

Page 1 ,  remove lines 5 through 23 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 28 with: 

"SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 1 5-1 0 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Skilled workforce scholarship program - Skilled workforce scholarship 
fund - State board of higher education - Continuing appropriation . 

.1. There is created in the state treasury the skilled workforce scholarship 
fund. The fund consists of moneys transferred into the fund by the 
legislative assembly. matching funds received, and scholarship 
repayments. Moneys in the fund are appropriated to the state board of 
higher education on a continuing basis for the purpose of providing 
grants to institutions of higher education related to skilled workforce 
scholarships. Institutions of higher education include institutions under 
the control of the state board of higher education. North Dakota 
nonpublic accredited institutions of higher education. and tribally 
controlled community colleges. 

2.,. The state board of higher education shall develop policies to administer a 
skilled workforce scholarship program in cooperation with the Bank of 
North Dakota and the workforce education advisory council. The purpose 
of the skilled workforce scholarship program is to attract and retain 
students for professional or technical skills in high demand in this state. 

� The state board of higher education and the workforce education 
advisory council shall compile a list of qualifying educational programs by 
August first of each year. Qualifying educational programs must be able 
to be completed within four semesters or eight quarters and pertain to the 
technical skills in high demand in this state. 

4. Individuals enrolled in a qualifying educational program in this state may 
apply for a scholarship under this section. Scholarships are limited to the 
amount charged each quarter or semester by the educational institution 
for the tuition. fees. books. and supplies required for the qualifying 
educational program. The scholarships may supplement any other 
scholarship or grant financial aid received by a student to assist the 
student with the costs of the qualifying educational program. 

Q,. To be eligible for a scholarship under this section. a student shall 
maintain a 2.5 cumulative grade point average. based on a 4.0 grading 
system. A student may not receive scholarships under this section for 
more than the equivalent of four semesters of full-time enrollment or eight 
quarters of full-time enrollment. Upon completion of a qualifying 
educational program. a student who received a scholarship under this 
section shall remain and work in this state for a minimum of three years. 

6. An individual shall repay the scholarship pursuant to the terms in the 
individual's scholarship award agreement if the individual fails to maintain 
a 2.5 cumulative grade point average while enrolled. discontinues 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_24_001 
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attendance before the completion of any semester or quarter for which a 
scholarship has been received. or fails to remain and work in this state 
for at least three years following degree or certificate completion. 

7. Each quarter or semester. the state board of higher education shall 
distribute grants to institutions of higher education to provide the amounts 
necessary for the scholarships awarded to the students enrolled in each 
institution. The state board of higher education may distribute grants only 
to the extent that the private sector has provided one dollar of matching 
funds for each dollar of funding provided by the state." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment consolidates the skilled workforce scholarship program and fund in one 
section of North Dakota Century Code. provides for the State Board of Higher Education to 
administer the program rather than the Bank of North Dakota. and provides other minor 
technical corrections. 
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33195 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Bev Monroe  by Marjorie Conley 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A bill relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 

 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Opened the hearing on SB 2039. 
 
Emily Thompson, Legislative Council:  Essentially this bill creates a skilled workforce 
scholarship program aimed at attracting and retaining students for professional or 
technical skills in high demand areas in this state.  The program is administered by the 
state board of higher education in cooperation with the Bank of North Dakota and the 
workforce education advisory council.  The state board and the workforce education 
advisory council, they are required to compile a list of qualifying educational programs 
that would be eligible for this scholarship funding and has to be published by August 1 
of each year.  Qualifying programs must be completed within two years and pertain 
to technical skills that are in high demand in our state.  A student enrolled in the  
qualifying program may apply for the scholarship which covers tuition, books, fees, 
and supplies essentially all of the expenses related to that high demand program.   
While enrolled in this program, the student must maintain a 2.5 GPA.  They also are 
required to successfully complete the program and remain and work in the state for 
three years following the completion of that educational program.  If they fail to reach 
all the terms, they are subject to repayment which is provided in the terms of the 
scholarship agreement.  The amount provided here is 10 million dollars, that is subject 
to matching funds, so a total of 10 million dollars for this scholarship program.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any questions?  
 
Rep. Hoverson:  About the 10 million dollars, is that funds that are already designated? 
   
Emily Thompson:  The 10 million dollars is from the bank’s current earnings and undivided 
profits that will go into this fund and the other 10 million will be from private industry. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:   Would you still support it if the GPA were raised to 2.75 or 3.?   
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Emily Thompson:  Neutral testimony will answer this question as I just explained the bill. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  My concern is about the August deadline, as that is about when 
students are starting college.   
 
Emily Thompson:   The date was selected by the interim taxation committee.  The tax 
committee thought that not using tax incentives but to use grant scholarship program 
would be more of an incentive for the workforce needs. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional questions?  
 
Lisa Johnson, Interim Vice Chancellor, Academic & Student Affairs, NDUS: 
 (Attachment  1)Support for SB 2039. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg: I keep hearing that tomorrow’s workforce is going to be changing 
Jobs many times throughout their career, so is there any opportunity for a student 
to get a liberal arts degree or teach them how to learn and not a specific technical skill? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  It would not under liberal arts transfer as that would be a four year institutions 
that might have scholarships attached to them.   The focus is in the high demand jobs. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg: Did the task force look at salaries in different parts of the country? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  I can speak most distinctly on the governors nursing task force and we did 
find that our nurses were paid similarly, but those that lived along the Minnesota boarder, 
Minnesota liked nurses that has one year of experience.   
 
 Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  Could elaborate on the non public accredited institutions of  
higher education?  Could you give us some examples of these? 
 
Lisa Johnson: The non public accredited institutions of higher education would include 
University of Mary and Jamestown.  They were trying to make sure that the student was 
accredited and that they met certification requirements.  That is why they included the  
word accredited.  
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  The non-public would primarily be the University of Mary and 
Jamestown?  That would be private institutions. 
 
Lisa Johnson:  That is correct. 
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson:  Is there a hard list that explains what a high demand field is? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  At present the North Dakota University system, job service, and the 
department of commerce actually do produce what’s called an in demand occupation list. 
It covers the entire range of any credentialed less than an associate all the way through 
masters level.  We work as a multiagency committee, as we can set the parameters 
on that so we could exclude 4 year programs. Our intent was to use that process 
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to produce the high demand list specified in the bill and identify those high demand 
programs.   
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson:  Wind technicians were not heard of 20 years ago in North Dakota, 
now you see wind farms all over.  
 
Lisa Johnson:   We might have to modify and include emerging jobs.  We may have to  
add cyber security, unmanned aerial systems, wind technicians.  Those might be on the 
emerging lise.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional questions?  
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager: Technically, I have not been familiar with tuition, books and  
supplies in scholarships. 
 
Lisa Johnson: This one is a little different with tuition fees, books and supplies and  
that’s why I always add the additional language for the qualifying educational program 
because if your supplies are to be used in the workforce buying tools to work in a  
mechanical program and we didn’t want them to be the responsibility of the student 
as they could be quite high. Not just any supplies but specific to the program.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Do you see and difficulties in tracking students 
If they leave the state? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  It didn’t seem to be a concern when we met to prepare testimony.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Do you see any difficulties in matching funds? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  We know that is important to the bill sponsors and this shows campus 
commitment. The student will have a contract in terms of their obligations to meet 
the parameters of the scholarship or that will convert to a loan.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:   support for SB 2039. 
 
Jane Vangsness, Vice President for Student Affairs, NDSCS: (Attachment 2  ) 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Questions?  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  What are the high demand fields?  Costs depend on the field student 
goes into -  supplies, room and board, grants, etc.  Could you provide us with some  
numbers? 
 
Jane Vangsness:  It truly depends on what field the student goes into.  It would 
Probably cost $10,000.00 a year for a diesel mechanic.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Are you saying that a student that does not get any other  
assistance would not get this? 
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Jane Vangsness:  They would be eligible for this.  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  They could have up to $10,000.00 a year matched. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  How does this work with the federal system? 
 
Jane Vangsness:  It would reduce their loans. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Do you see any issues with the matching piece? 
What is your perspective on this? 
 
Jane Vangsness:  The matching is 1 to 1.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Continue with support with SB 2039. 
 
Brenda Zastoupil, North Dakota University System:  I was doing some calculations, 
and I think that will be a process as with other scholarships that other grants would 
be considered.     
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Is there a requirement to apply for other 
programs before this? 
 
Brenda Zastoupil:  It doesn’t specifically say fafsa, but if we have the language that this is 
that last dollar that’s implied. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Continue with support of SB 2039. 
 
Eric Hardmeyer, Bank of North Dakota:   end 40:00 (Attachment 3)  There are two bills 
that are dealing with workforce development.  HB 1171 was passed by the house IBL 
and by the full house.  That was amended to convert it from a scholarship to a forgivable 
loan.  Since BND provides funding for both, and is engaged I thought it might be important 
for me to testify on this bill.  These two bills might be combined at some time.  Our  
preference would be SB 2039.  It allows for 10 million dollars versus 5 million.   
   
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Question?  
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:   If a student gets the 5 thousand dollars and works for a year 
and leaves North Dakota, do you make that into a student loan? 
 
Eric Hardmeyer:  It would convert to a debt instrument. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Continue with support of SB 2039. 
 
ElRoy Burkle, NDSOS: (Attachment  4) This type of scholarship is great. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I am hung up on the 2.5 GPA. 
 
ElRoy Burkle: A lot of students struggle with grades. 
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Rep. Hoverson:  In the bill, I was assuming that the GPA is while you are in college. 
Are we talking about high school or what? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  GPA is accumulative in college.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Continue with support. 
 
Ellen Huber, Economic Development Association of ND (EDND): (Attachment 5) 
(46:00-50:25) 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any Questions? 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager: Is there no resident requirement?  
 
Ellen Huber:  If we can attract people and keep them as our future work force, we 
are very much interested in keeping them in our state. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any Questions?  Who is going to handle the 
marketing program? 
 
Ellen Huber: I would agree.  We haven’t quite gotten to that point yet.  We would  
certainly welcome the opportunity to do so and join together with higher education 
and BND and the economical development association to make sure that this 
program would be known in our state and beyond our state. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Continue with support.  
 
Mason Sisk, Asst. Executive Director, Technology Council of North Dakota: 
(Attachment  6) 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Questions?  
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  What are the top tech jobs? 
 
Mason Sisk:  The top jobs are cyber security and general IT jobs. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional questions? Continue with SB 2039. 
 
Cambree Smith, Vice President, ND Student Association: (Attachment 7) would also like 
to propose an amendment    end 59:20 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: You are a student?  Do you plan to stay in ND? 
 
Cambree Smith:  I am a student at Minot University.  I will go out of state for law school 
but I plan to come back to ND. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Continue with support of SB 2039. 
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Phil Murphy, Soybean Growers:  I would have testified for this program 30 years ago. 
This is a great help for the state of ND.   
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:    questions 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  From your perspective, do you see the soy bean industry stepping 
Into it and offer scholarships?    
 
Phil Murphy: I don’t represent the soy bean council but I do represent the growers. 
It is certainly is a possibility. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  If there is this demand, the government steps in to help, do you 
think that would in general lessen the demand response to pressure?  
 
Phil Murphy:  I did spend 36 years as an instructor some of that teaching economics 
but I don’t want to touch that one. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any other questions for Phil? 
 
Matt Gardner, GNDC:  We are here today in support of this bill. Work force is a big 
Issue.  Work force is likely the number one issue right now. It is important that we 
focus on those high demand career fields.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Support – Opposition- Neutral   
 
 Close hearing.    
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program; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Owens:  Opened committee work on SB 2039. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  The amendments were passed out and in 4 b 
cross out ‘must have maintained at least a 2.75 grade point average’, make it a 2.5 grade 
point average.  This is the bill we passed out of committee called HB 1171.  It hoghouses SB 
2039 back to HB 1171. 
 
Chairman Owens:  In the House, we have a loan program where you can get repaid and all 
that other in claw backs and they have a giveaway grant program in the Senate.  The House 
prefers the loan and the Senate prefers the giveaway program.   They are hoghousing HB 
1171 and turning it into SB 2039.  We are helping them by doing the same thing on this side. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  I’d like to move the Amendment. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Is there a second? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I’ll Second it. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I would prefer it to go the other way on the grade point average to 3.0. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  I was able to talk to a student from NDSCS but did not ask him his 
GPA.  In our conversation, I asked him what he thought the average GPA of fellow students 
may be.  He replied that it was probably below 2.75.   I am thinking this program was more 
like a stipend than a loan.  I like the idea of a scholarship and that we are doing this 
academically, but I think we are looking at a different pool of our students who are going into 
the workforce.  I don’t think we want to remove these options for them because they are 
required to take algebra or chemistry or challenging themselves in some of those areas.  To 
get that GPA at a 2.75 might be eliminating some of the students who could benefit from the 
scholarship. 
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Rep. Mary Johnson:  Here is an example – you have no financial help and you work hard.  
The first thing you do is pay your rent, then the utilities and if you are lucky you have 
something leftover for groceries.  I don’t think we need to penalize those who have to spend 
their time supporting themselves.  They might not do so well in a class or so because they 
don’t have the time, but I don’t think we should penalize those hard workers.  I would like to 
see it move down to a 2.0. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  The Department of Commerce was going to give me more 
information on this bill and I’m wondering if it wouldn’t be better to give it to the whole 
committee.   
 
Jim Leiman, Director, Economic Development and Finance & Assistant Director, 
Workforce Development:  This is a lot less controversial, on line 19 where is states 
“workforce education advisory council”, that organization hasn’t existed for forty years.  We 
were requesting a change to reflect the workforce development council.  The Workforce 
Development Council is a group of thirty-plus private industry members as well as 
representatives such as Chancellor Hagerott from the North Dakota University System 
(NDUS) that know the in-demand occupations and in our opinion can define them very well 
based on trends within each targeted industry in the state as well as other industries that are 
suffering.  For the best focused areas based on industry input as well as the group that 
already includes NDUS representation, we are requesting respectfully that that be changed 
to reflect the Workforce Development Council.     
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  James is looking at the original SB 2039 which I 
questioned when I saw the advisory council and when we hoghouse it we actually use 
workforce development council, which is back to HB 1171.  We have eliminated that advisory 
council but we will take that into consideration when we go into conference committee. 
 
Chairman Owens:  You don’t have that advisory council in the amendment at all.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  No, it does not exist in the original bill.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Now we know what to look for when they bring our 1171 back with their 
2039 in it.    Any further comments? 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I can appreciate hard work and have never heard of a scholarship requiring 
a GPA as being a penalty.  If we could change this from scholarship to subsidy, that might 
be more accurate.  It is coming across more like a subsidy.  Every chart you look at, subsidies 
don’t help students, they drive up tuition.  Where there are no subsidies, tuition goes down. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  This is a loan program, it’s not a scholarship 
program. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I thought it was a skilled workforce scholarship program, so that misled me. 
 
Chairman Owens:  That’s what the Senate sent over.  That’s where the House and Senate 
are in disagreement.   



House Education Committee  
SB 2039 
3-20-19 
Page 3  
   

 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  The amendment is what you want to have in your 
hand.  It is a totally hoghoused bill, meaning it has totally replaced the original 1171, except 
for the GPA.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  On the top of page 2 of the amendment ‘must remain and work in the 
state’, should we have a time frame on that or leave it up to those tasked with that?  Do you 
want a time frame on it or is specifically left off for a purpose?   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  If they are not employed, they won’t have the 
benefit of a supplemental loan program.  They have to remain here and be employed in order 
to have that one for one.  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:   They can’t get employed, get a benefit and take off.   This is ongoing 
during their employment in this state? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Yes, so much per year or one-third of the value 
of the loan or accumulative amount of $17,000.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Is it the intent, because nowhere in the amendment do I see non- 
public?   Is it intended to cover private – because we had non-public listed before? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  The piece about this is the student has 
accumulated a loan and they have had to apply for the loan process through the Bank of ND.  
They are on the books as having a loan.   They could have attended a school and they have 
acquired a loan and if they are in those finite groups that we need workforce for, then they 
can enter this program and get assistance with their loan repayment.  They are gainfully 
employed in the state of North Dakota. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  I could go to a Minnesota school and take on loans through Minnesota 
and those can be taken on? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: No, just North Dakota.  They have to be employed 
in the state of North Dakota in one of those specified occupations.   They could go to school 
wherever but they have to have an existing loan with the Bank of North Dakota.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Sections 8 and 9 are a dollar for dollar matching program too.  It is not 
just public funds that are doing this.   In order to get the public funds, the individuals are 
working on the apprenticeship program or working for that company already. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  If there are now private funds coming in, there is 
no loan program.   
 
Chairman Owens:  We know the industries are interested in this because they are struggling 
to get qualified workforce right now.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  On page 1 c in the amendment, ‘or other participating lender’, can we 
clarify?  What is meant by that?  What other lenders are there in North Dakota? 
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Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:   I don’t have an answer to that but I can certainly 
find out.   
 
Chairman Owens:  If we can put the motion for the amendment on hold and let her get some 
answers, we can go further on that this afternoon. 
 
When you fill out a financial aid application now you fill out the FAFSA, which used to be the 
PAL grant and before that it was the BEOG.  Now, the FAFSA is an all-inclusive financial aid 
application.  You still have to apply for scholarships separately, but as far as grants, student 
loans, secured student loans and interest free student loans, they are all taken off that one 
application.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  inaudible 
 
Chairman Owens:  As far as this program goes, it has to come out of this fund and has to 
be a dollar for dollar match based on them getting participating industries.  With this portion 
of the grant, you get federal dollars or you get a secured interest loan and you still need some 
money – so for that portion of it you can apply for this.   It would actually be separate from 
FAFSA.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  inaudible 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  Under 4 a, who determines if it is a qualifying educational program 
from the Bank of North Dakota? 
 
Chairman Owens:  We are having issues with this bill because this is the first time we are 
seeing this.  It originally went through IBL, because it is workforce.   
 
Rep. Brandy Pyle:  The higher ed board senate concurrent resolution went to Judiciary. 
 
Chairman Owens:  The SCR was supposed to come to us after talking to the assistant 
majority leader and the speaker sent it to judiciary, because it is a constitutional revision.  
SCR 4016 went to Judiciary rather than coming to us.  It was discussed that it was done 
wrong because they were constitutional revisions and they needed to be sent to Judiciary.   
We will hold the motion till this afternoon.   
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:   I’ll withdraw the motion till we see the amendments. 
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A bill relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Owens:  Reopened SB 2039.  Our amendment is HB1171 as it was passed 
out to the senate.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson: (Attachment 1) On 4 – c on the bottom of page one where is says 
or other participating lender.  Those are all lenders across the nation?  Does BND have 
student loans? 
 
Chairman Owens:  Let me just clarify this real quick.  All student loans now are done 
through Department of education.  The only way another institution or bank is if  
someone has refinanced their student loans after they graduated and then they have  
it with another bank.  The students are advised not to do that with many normal banks 
because they lose the ability if they work in government for 10 years to have the rest 
of it deferred, so they lose that option if they get it with a regular bank, they don’t lose 
that if they have it with the BND, because it is a state bank.  Student loans are not like 
it used to be.  President Obama moved everything to the department of education so 
that 3% loans could become 61/2% loans.   
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  The student would have completed school, and had 
a student loan through any entity, we are looking for workforce issues as defined where 
we need people in the workforce and there is no payment where there are no matching 
funds and where there will be no payment for that individuals’ loan even if he wasn’t employed 
in the state of ND.   
 
Rep. Grueneich:  This is designed for the smaller industries that need more of the 
workforce.  I don’t think that restricting them to go to a ND school is necessarily  
the answer.  The education is one thing but we want them to work, live and become 
established in the state of ND and that is the ultimate end result.  In most cases, 
once they work in a community for a year or two years, they are established and  
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probably have a significant other friend.  They are established within the community 
whether it be rural or recreational or sporting.   
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  I think we had a little discussion on the fact that if 
they were employed for a year and left their continuation of payment alone would 
be only eligible for that year of employment. 
 
Rep. Grueneich:  Actually that is not correct because on this the way this is set up 
there is no pay and then you get to play.  You are going to have a student loan set up 
prior to, so you leave on your three, you are responsible for the money loaned.   
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  If they leave the state after one year, but their 
payment program leaves with them.  They receive no more funding if they leave the 
state.  We were talking on that they could be educated in any school as long as the 
criteria was with the workforce need.  Out of state, in state wherever.  The question 
has arisen about having the ND University system in the bill if indeed those individuals 
not necessarily had anything to do with the ND university system.  I think the ND  
workforce development council has all the statistics anyway on where our workforce 
needs are.   
 
Rep. Grueneich:  I think that anytime you can have one entity as opposed to multiple. 
I think that would only strengthen your position. 
 
Vice Chariman Schreiber-Beck:  On page 1 Number 3, strike The North Dakota  
university system and.  On page 1, 4b again it is 2.5 versus 2.75.   
 
Rep. Hager:  I have a question whether we need a GPA at all because we are giving 
them a loan and I know whether that is in there at all anymore.  We have gone from 
a scholarship to a stipend to a grant and now we are talking about basic loans.  This is 
the thing that if you are in the bank that’s not the need of any concept of GPA at all.  
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  I intend to agree with you because these people have 
provided competency and finished a program and they have a loan and they have a  
job.  What more can you ask?  Please eliminate 4b and renumber accordingly.  Any 
other comments that I will definitely take? 
 
Rep. Zubke:  On number 3, where it says the ND workforce development council shall 
compile a list of qualifying educational programs, is there something through job service 
that will actually determine that or is there already criteria set up to say that this is in high 
demand or this is an emerging occupation?  Could I go to job service and ask for a list 
of high demand jobs or emerging occupation jobs? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Yes, that is correct. 
 
Rep. Hager:  I am struggling a little bit about removing something that is education 
whether it is the university system or something, but looking at qualifying educational 
programs I think some component of the educational system versus the commerce 
system should be involved in compiling that list of the programs.  We are looking at 
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programs that they will be going into, not a partnership. 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Motion to adopt amendment. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Second. 
 
Rep. Pyle:  Who are the members of the ND Workforce Development Council? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  I can look it up, but I am one of them.  It is a very 
large membership on that workforce council, if you go online a number of state  
representatives, a number of two legislators, one from the senate, one from the house 
probably made up from industry representatives.  Vast number of people.  Higher ed 
is represented also.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further questions or comments? 
 
Rep. Pyle:  There is a variety and Dr. Hagerott is on there out of higher ed.  There is 
a representation of different industries and there are 33 members. 
 
Voice Vote to amend as presented.  Voice vote carried 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Motion to Do Pass SB 2039 as amended and rereferred to  
appropriations. 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Second. 
 
Rep. Marshall:  This will take $5,000,000 from the BND.  That would be our half 
of the total. 
 
Chairman Owens: There has to be a one to one match.  The other half has to be deposited 
in the BND.  That is what this bill says.  This is not a continuing appropriation.  
 
Roll Call Vote taken Yes  11  No  1  Absent  2 . 
 
Rep. M Johnson is the Carrier.  
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March 20, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2039 

Page 1, line 1, after "A Bl LL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact two new sections to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
the development and implementation of a skilled workforce student loan repayment 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide for a transfer; to provide an 
expiration date ; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Skil l ed workforce student loan repayment program - Development and 
implementation 

.L The Bank of North Dakota shall adopt rules to develop, implement, 
promote, and administer a skilled workforce student loan repayment 
program in conjunction with the North Dakota university system and the 
North Dakota workforce development council with the intent of attracting 
and retaining individuals for professional or technical skills in high demand 
in this state. 

2 .  The North Dakota workforce development council in cooperation with job 
service North Dakota shall use available labor market information to 
determine annually the eligible high-demand and emerging occupations in 
this state . 

3. The North Dakota workforce development council shall compile a list of 
qualifying educational programs by April first of each year. Qualifying 
educational programs may include degree or certificate programs. 

4. Graduates of qualifying educational programs from institutions or entities in 
this state may apply for the skilled workforce student loan repayment 
program. To be eligible to receive student loan repayment grants under the 
program, the applicant: 

a. Must have successfully completed a qualifying educational program 
from a Bank of North Dakota-approved institution or entity after 
January 1, 2019: 

b. Must have a student loan with the Bank of North Dakota or other 
participating lender: 

c. Following completion of a qualifying educational program must remain 
and work in this state in an eligible high-demand or emerging 
occupation; and 

Page No. 1 19.0294.05002 



d. Must have met and shall continue to meet any requirements 
established by rule. 

5. The Bank of North Dakota shall adopt rules to ensure compliance with 
residency and occupation requirements after completion of the qualifying 
educational program. 

6. The Bank of North Dakota shall distribute student loan repayment grants 
from the skilled workforce student loan repayment program fund directly to 
the Bank of North Dakota or other participating lender to repay outstanding 
student loan principal balances for eligible applicants. The maximum 
annual student loan repayment grant amount for which an applicant may 
qualify is five thousand six hundred sixty-seven dollars, or one-third of the 
applicant's outstanding student loan principal balance, whichever is less. 
The maximum total student loan repayment grant amount for which any 
applicant may qualify is seventeen thousand dollars. 

L. If an individual is receiving loan forgiveness under any other provision, the 
individual may not receive a student loan repayment grant under this 
section during the same application year. 

8. The skilled workforce student loan repayment program must be a joint 
public and private effort. The Bank of North Dakota shall provide one dollar 
of funding for each one dollar of funding raised from the private sector. 

9. The North Dakota university system in cooperation with the North Dakota 
workforce development council shall seek private matching funds for the 
skilled workforce student loan repayment program. Any matching funds 
received must be deposited in the skilled workforce student loan 
repayment program fund. 

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Skilled workforce student loan repayment program fund established -
Continuing appropriation. 

The skilled workforce student loan repayment program fund is established as a 
revolving fund. All moneys deposited or transferred into the fund and interest earned on 
moneys in the fund are appropriated for the purposes of section 1 of this Act. 

SECTION 3. TRANSFER - BAN K OF NORTH DAKOTA - SKILLED 
WORKFORCE STUDEN T LOAN REPAYMENT PROGRAM FUN D. The Bank of North 
Dakota shall transfer the sum of $5,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, from the Bank's current earnings and undivided profits to the skilled 
workforce student loan repayment program fund during the period beginning with the 
effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 4. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 2 of this Act is effective through 
June 30, 2021, and after that date is ineffective. 

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 48_021 
Carrier: M. Johnson 

Insert LC: 19.0294.05002 Title: 06000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2039, as engrossed: Education Committee (Rep. Owens, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee ( 1 1  YEAS, 1 NAYS, 
2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG). Engrossed SB 2039 was placed on the Sixth order 
on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after "A BI LL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact two new sections to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce student loan 
repayment program; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide for a transfer; 
to provide an expiration date; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Skilled workforce student loan repayment program - Development and 
implementation . 

.1. The Bank of North Dakota shall adopt rules to develop, implement, 
promote, and administer a skilled workforce student loan repayment 
program in conjunction with the North Dakota university system and the 
North Dakota workforce development council with the intent of attracting 
and retaining individuals for professional or technical skills in high 
demand in this state . 

.£. The North Dakota workforce development council in cooperation with job 
service North Dakota shall use available labor market information to 
determine annually the eligible high-demand and emerging occupations 
in this state. 

� The North Dakota workforce development council shall compile a list of 
qualifying educational programs by April first of each year. Qualifying 
educational programs may include degree or certificate programs. 

4. Graduates of qualifying educational programs from institutions or entities 
in this state may apply for the skilled workforce student loan repayment 
program. To be eligible to receive student loan repayment grants under 
the program, the applicant: 

£c Must have successfully completed a qualifying educational program 
from a Bank of North Dakota-approved institution or entity after 
January 1 ,  20 1 9; 

� Must have a student loan with the Bank of North Dakota or other 
participating lender; 

g_,_ Following completion of a qualifying educational program must 
remain and work in this state in an eligible high-demand or emerging 
occupation; and 

� Must have met and shall continue to meet any requirements 
established by rule. 

Q,. The Bank of North Dakota shall adopt rules to ensure compliance with 
residency and occupation requirements after completion of the qualifying 
educational program. 
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Insert LC: 19.0294.05002 Title: 06000 

6. The Bank of North Dakota shall distribute student loan repayment grants 
from the skilled workforce student loan repayment program fund di rectly 
to the Bank of North Dakota or other part icipat ing lender to repay 
outstanding student loan principal balances for eligible applicants. The 
maximum annual student loan repayment grant amount for which an 
applicant may qualify is five thousand six hundred sixty-seven dollars, or 
one-thi rd of the applicant's outstanding student loan principal balance, 
whichever is less. The maximum total student loan repayment grant 
amount for which any applicant may qualify is seventeen thousand 
dollars. 

L. If an individual is receiving loan forgiveness under any other provision, 
the individual may not receive a student loan repayment grant under this 
section during the same application year. 

§.,. The skilled workforce student loan repayment program must be a joint 
public and private effort. The Bank of North Dakota shall provide one 
dollar of funding for each one dollar of funding raised from the private 
sector. 

� The North Dakota university system in cooperation with the North Dakota 
workforce development council shall seek private matching funds for the 
skilled workforce student loan repayment program. Any matching funds 
received must be deposited in the skilled workforce student loan 
repayment program fund. 

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Skil led workforce student loan repayment program fund established -
Continuing appropriation. 

The skilled workforce student loan repayment program fund is established as 
a revolving fund. All moneys deposited or transferred into the fund and interest 
earned on moneys in the fund are appropriated for the purposes of section 1 of this 
Act. 

SECTION 3. TRANSFER - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - SKILLED 
WORKFORCE STUDENT LOAN REPAYMENT PROGRAM FUND. The Bank of 
North Dakota shall transfer the sum of $5 , 000 ,000 ,  or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, from the Bank's current earnings and undivided prof its to the skilled 
workforce student loan repayment program fund during the period beginning with the 
effective date of this Act, and ending June 30 ,  202 1 .  

SECTION 4. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 2 of this Act is effective through 
June 30 ,  202 1 , and after that date is ineffective. 

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2039 
3/27/2019 

34278 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 

Relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce student loan repayment 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide for a transfer 

 

Minutes:                                                  

 
 
Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order for SB 2039. This bill basically is a hog 
house and you put HB 1171 in it.  
 
Representative Owens: That is exactly what we did, SB 2039 came to us as a giveaway 
program this is a grant program that requires matching funds and specific to high demand 
occupations to help without work force issues.  This requires a 1 to 1 match so no money 
flows out unless industry participates.  
 
Chairman Delzer: That’s like if it’s a nursing scholarship it would have to be somebody that 
is hiring a nurse, or a stem scholarship, it would be the industry that is hiring them.  
 
Representative Owens: This only refers to consolidated loans at the bank of North Dakota 
or other consolidated loans at other banks.  It’s limited to 5667 dollars or 1/3 of the 
applicants is paid after and directly to the schools and it must meet the four qualifications 
listed.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Why would it be paid to the school?  
 
Representative Owens: I wouldn’t be paid to the school; it would be paid directly to the 
bank.  
 
Chairman Delzer: And the total they can receive is 17 thousand? And that would be a 
three-year deal? What happens if they move after two years? There’s no recapture?  
 
Representative Owens: Then we get those two years that they were here because it’s 
paid after the fact. There’s no recapture at this point.  
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Chairman Delzer: And it’s up to the Bank to decide who gets it? 
 
Representative Owens: The North Dakota Workforce Council shall compile a list of 
qualifying education programs that are specific to and working with Job Service of North 
Dakota annually to determine the eligible high demand occupations. Graduates of those 
qualifying programs may apply for this skilled workforce student loan and then there has to 
be a dollar for dollar match before any money is paid out, up to a maximum of 5 million 
dollars.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Did you have any discussion about whether or not that list of what 
qualifies should have some kinds of legislative approval? 
 
Representative Owens: We did not, the demands across the state change every six 
months, so I would be concerned about the reaction time.  
 
Chairman Delzer: It’s 5 million from the bank of North Dakota footings, and this a new 
program and there is no repayment on this? 
 
Representative Owens: This is a new program to entice a private partnership for 
scholarships to build our workforce. Our unemployment rate is extremely low and yet we 
have plenty of jobs.  
 
Chairman Delzer: The would have to work a whole year before they would get paid back. 
SB 2039 came over was 10 million dollars, was it considerably different?  
 
Representative Owens: It was a giveaway program that the committee didn’t like at all.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Since you basically put a house bill in here are you aware of what they 
are doing?  
 
Representative Owens: I understand that they hog housed SB 2071 into SB 2039 so if 
this passes the chamber and goes to the senate it will go into conference committee. There 
will be 1171 in one conference committee and 2039 in another.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I would guess they will kill this bill and go to conference on 1171.  
 
Representative Owens: If 1171 comes over looking like 2039 I already know at least 13 
no votes.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: In the appropriation the Bank profits, was that the same in both 
bills?  
 
Chairman Delzer: 2039 was 10 million of bank profits and 1171 was 5 million in bank 
profits.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: Was there any thought about another funding source? This is 
only for the upcoming biennium isn’t there usually money left over for.  
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Chairman Delzer: That’s already figured into the return and it’s in the general fund budget 
statues already. The return from everything is 54 I think from K-12 is around 12.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: There was 12 in human services.  
 
 Representative Sanford: Did the committee look at the success or history for these type 
of programs?  
 
Representative Owens: The discussion wasn’t about other states or federal programs that 
examine this other than getting into what is available for student loans and student grants. 
As far as this particular bill it was new to us, because this was a private public matching we 
thought that we unique enough to take it back to that.  
 
Chairman Delzer: There are some fields that are paying 100% right now is this going to 
pay half of what they are already paying.  
 
Representative Owens: Not unless it is considered high demand on occupation in North 
Dakota and there’s a qualifying program in the state.  
 
Chairman Delzer: That’s why I don’t like having someone else make this list. 
 
Representative Owens: It’s not just anyone else, it’s the North Dakota Work Force Council 
along with our Job Service. Those two groups have invested interest in improving the 
workforce and two, in filling jobs. 
 
Chairman Delzer: Any further discussion? Seeing none we will close this meeting.   
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce student loan repayment 

program; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide for a transfer 

 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
3:10 Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order for SB 2039. This is the work force 
development bill, came over from the senate with 10 million and a little bit different. It does 
do 5 million out of the footings of the bank, it allows the bank and job service to decide which 
employment opportunities are in high enough demand to get some of this funding.  
 
4:50 Representative Monson: In section 2, it talks about continuing appropriation, does this 
go on every biennium with 5 million? 
 
Chairman Delzer: The funding I think would be there one time but if the fund wasn’t used by 
the end of the biennium with a continuing appropriation it would still be in place to be used.   
 
 Representative Sanford: Is there a procured of following this kind of thing? We seem to attack 
these issues up front with a scholarship or in the back with loan forgiveness, I would like to know what 
kind of effect these have.  
 
Representative Monson: Another thing in there’s a lot of companies that already do this, so are we 
just giving them that back? 
 
Chairman Delzer: Well it says in here they can’t get it, if the individual is receiving forgiveness under 
any other provision than they may not receive a student loan repayment grant under this section 
under the same application year.  
 
 Representative Nathe: Is this a 1 to 1 match up to 5 million? 
 
Chairman Delzer: Yes, and in sub section 9 it says anything that comes back is to be deposited in 
the fund to be a revolving type of loan.  
 
Representative Monson: I like this idea but I think we could do better.  
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Chairman Delzer: I think we could defiantly have some kind of reporting requirements.  
 
Representative Monson: Can you give us a little time to work on some kind of amendment for a 
reporting requirement?  
 
Representative Beadle: This one compared to HB 1171, I served on the interim taxation committee 
as we were working on this and originally it was put in as a scholarship fund so we were paying for it 
in the front. Through the interim we had a few others that wanted to change it to the back end because 
it models more of what South Dakota is doing. I think the reporting requirements would be a good 
addition.  
 
Chairman Delzer: No further discussion? We will hold that until we get those amendments.  
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 

Relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce student loan 
repayment program; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide for a transfer. 

 
 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: SB 2039 is a bill that deals with work force enhancement, came out of the 
senate as a scholarship and grant type of program. My understanding is the house education 
committee did was put HB 1171 into this bill. HB 1171 is in the senate and that has been 
amended pretty close to this bill. We were asked to put a DO Not Pass on this bill so that 
they can conference on one bill instead of two.  
 
Representative Brandenburg: Do Not Pass 
 
Representative J. Nelson: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: Discussion on the motion? One of the differences is the senate wanted 
10 million dollars and the House is at 5. The other thing the House is more about paying off 
loans and possibly some kind of scholarships but not grants, the Senate has more grants. I 
think there is some compromised language being discussed on HB 1171. We were talking 
about making sure there was reporting requirements on it, they are planning on adding that 
into HB 1171 as well.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: Why we need this today? I thought we’d see how the conference 
committee is progressing before we move this.  
 
Chairman Delzer: We were asked to put this in that bill, that’s the reason for the Do Not 
Pass.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: The question should be asked where does the best policy come 
from?  
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Chairman Delzer: We don’t want it out here that there are two different bills out there that 
they are confessing from two different committees.  Any further discussion? Seeing none we 
will call the roll. 
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:       12       Nay:      7       Absent:      2 
 
Motion Carries, Representative Brandenburg will carry the bill.  
 
Chairman Delzer: We will close the meeting for SB 2039. 
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Rol l C al l  Vote #: 1 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STAN DING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2039 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description :  

Recommendation : D Adopt Amendment 

Committee 

D Do Pass � Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Representative Brandenburg Seconded By __ R_e.._p_re_s_e_n_t_at_i_ve_J_. _N_e_ls_o_n_ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Cha i rman Delzer X 
Representative Kempenich A 
Representative Anderson X Representative Schobinger X 
Representative Bead le X Representative Vigesaa X 
Representative Bel lew X 
Representative B randenburg X 
Representative Howe X Representative Boe A 
Representative Kreidt X Representative Holman X 

Representative Mart inson X Representative Mock X 
Representative Meier X 

Representative Monson X 
Representative Nathe X 
Representative J .  Nelson X 

Representative Sanford X 
Representative Schatz X 
Representative Schm idt X 

Total 12 No 7 (Yes) ----------- ---------------
Absent 2 -------------------------------
Floor Assignment Representative Brandenburg 

Motion Carries 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_59_004 
Carrier: Brandenburg 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2039, as engrossed and amended: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, 

Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS ( 1 2  YEAS, 7 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT 
VOT I NG ) .  Engrossed SB 2039,  as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order on 
the calendar. 
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In Support o/ 58 2039 

Why does North Dakota need a 

• Ski l led Workforce Scho la rsh ip  Program?  

• 

• 

Meet Workforce Needs 

To better  reta i n  and  a l ign g raduates with workfo rce demands  many states have deve loped red uced o r  no-cost 

tu it ion p rogra ms  at 2-ye a r  ( commun ity and  tech n i ca l  co l l eges ) .  

North Dakota is in a workforce crisis: 

• 13 ,300+ job open i ngs a re reported statewide, with 23 of 53 No rth  Da kota cou nties re port ing unem p loyed

pe r-o pe n ing rates of less tha n 1, which i nd icates more job open ings than  res ident l a bo r  supp ly1
. 

• " M id d le-sk i l l " jobs  req u i ring ed ucat ion beyond h igh schoo l  but not a fou r-yea r degree, make up  the la rgest 

p a rt of Amer ica 's  l abor  ma rket. In North Da kota, t hese ca ree rs a ccount fo r 60% of the  l a bor  ma rket2
, and  

e m p loye rs a re u na b le  to  fi nd enough suffic ie nt ly t ra i ned worke rs to  fi l l  these jobs .  

The Workfo rce Scho l a rs h i p  P rogram wou l d  he lp No rth  Da kota to c lose i ts workfo rce shortage ga p .  

Student Affordab i l ity & Cost Effic iency 

Th is  p rogra m cou l d  i m p rove a l l  students' access to educat ion  and  i nc rease affo rdab i l ity fo r a l l  students and  fa m i l ies .  

Th is  p rogra m i s  not structu red l i ke typica l 'scho la rsh i p' p rogra ms  - students a re not chosen pr ima ri ly on  merit or 

i ncome status  - but rat he r  a re selected based on chosen career path and willingness to stay in-state. The Sk i l l ed  

Workfo rce Scho l a rs h i p  P rogra m wou l d  su pp lement and  comp lement North  Da kota 's  robust student fi na nc ia l a i d  

p rogra ms  by p rovid i ng  ' l a st do l l a r' fu nd i ng, mean i ng that a student  must exhaust all other sources of financial aid 
( i n c l ud i ng  fede ra l  Pe l l  G ra nts and  othe r  state programs) ,  before the p rogram is accessed . 

Workforce Competition  

More t han  20 states/m u n ic ipa l it ies have adopted o r  a re cu rrent ly p i lot ing tu it ion-free/prom ise p rogra ms inc lud ing 

states su r ro u nd i ng No rth  Da kota (M i n nesota , South Da kota, and Monta na ) .  The South Da kota Bu i l d  Da kota 

Scho l a rs h i p  i s  u n i q ue in that  it is ava i l ab l e  to both residents and non-residents. H i sto rica l ly, a bout 70% of students 

that  e n ro l l  at N DSCS gra d uate from a North Da kota h igh schoo l ;  the majo rity of the other 30% comes from 

ne ighbor ing states ( M i n nesota, South Da kota, Montana ) .  S i nce the i ncept ion of the su rround ing states' p rogra ms 

the re has  been a dec l i ne  i n  South Da kota, M i n nesota, a nd  Monta na students attend ing  N DSCS. 

Attract & Reta i n  Graduates 

Students that come from othe r  states often choose to l ive a nd work i n  North  Da kota fo l lowing grad uation ;  i n  2018, 

30% of students from o uts i de  North Da kota stayed i n  North Da kota fo l lowing grad uat ion from N DSCS .3 The 

M i n nesota COSP a nd  South  Da kota 's Bu i l d  Da kota p rogra ms  have the potent ia l to red uce the n u m ber of entry-leve l 

e m p loyees e nter ing the No rth  Da kota workfo rce th rough N DSCS. 

I nvestment in the Future 

The costs a ssoc iated with other  states' no-cost (prom ise) tu it ion p rogra ms va ry based on  the cha racteristics of each 

p rogra m .  The Sk i l l ed  Workfo rce Scho l a rsh ip  Progra m does not yet de l i neate the educat io na l  p rogra ms that wou ld  

q u a l ify, but wou l d  req u i re i t  to be com p leted with i n  fou r  semeste rs and  perta i n  to  the techn ica l sk i l l s  i n  h igh 

demand  . 

1 https ://www.ndworkforceinte l l igence.com/admin/gsipub/htmla rea/uploads/lm i  ojornd .pdf 
2 https://m .nat iona lsk i l l scoa l it ion .org/resou rces/pub l icat ions/2017-m idd le-ski l l s-fact-sheets/fi le/North-Da kota- Midd leSki l l s .pdf 
3 2018 NDSCS P lacement Report 
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Improve ND Cit izens' Socioeconomic Posit ion 

Cit izens  without a co l l ege degree o r  techn i ca l  certificate a re less l i ke ly to ea rn a fam i ly-susta i n i ng wage, a nd more 
l i ke ly to req u i re pub l i c  ass ista nce, and  socia l services . 

Enhance Educational Outcomes 

It is known that fi na nc ia l c ha l l e nges a re one of the la rgest non-academ ic  ba rriers to students' success . States that 
have imp lemented these progra ms  have expe r ienced an i ncrease i n  student pers istence, graduat ion ,  a nd 
en ro l lment .4 

T E N N E S S E E  

Promise 
16% i n crease i n  

com m u n ity co l l ege 

retention rate 

THE SCIENCE OF SUCCESS. 

North Dakota State College of Science 

The 
Kalamazoo 
Prorrfse, 
33% i n crease i n  

co l l ege 

completion rate 

John Richman, Ph .D.  

President 
J ohn . R i chma n@ndscs .ed u 
701 .67 1 . 2221  

4 http://co l legepromise .org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/CPC-Annua l Report-Web- Pages-2 .pdf 

fo're g o n  
Prom ise 

13% i ncrease i n  

com m u n ity co l l ege 

enro l lments 
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION OF NORTH DAKOTA _ 

ED§§ 
§ND 
- po BOX 1 091 • BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 58502 

Testimony of Shawn Wen ko 
Economic  Development Association of North Dakota 

In Support of SB 2039 
January 9 ,  201 9 

Cha i rman  Scha ib le  and members of the Senate Ed ucation Comm ittee :  

I ' m  Shawn Wenko ,  executive d i rector of Wi l l iston Economic Development and 
v ice p res ident of the Economic Deve lopment Associat ion of North Dakota (EDND) .  On 
beha lf of  E D N D ,  I stand before you i n  support of  SB  2039 .  

E D N D  rep resents more than 80 large and sma l l  and ru ra l  and u rban economic 
deve lopment o rgan izat ions on the front l i ne of g rowing bus inesses and commun it ies in  
No rth Dakota . The p rimary pu rpose of  the organ izat ion is to p romote the creat ion of 
new wea lth th roug hout North Dakota to deve lop more v ibrant commun it ies and improve 
qua l ity of l ife . 

Workforce ava i l ab i l ity is the most s ign ificant cha l lenge fac ing North Dakota 
bus i nesses , l im it ing the g rowth potent ia l  of the state's economy. EDND supports the 
deve lopment of workforce attraction ,  development and retention strateg ies that add ress 
the needs of the state 's bus i nesses and ind ustries . As of October 20 1 8 , North Dakota 
had an  u nemp loyment rate of 2 . 8  percent, wh ich can make it d ifficu lt for bus i nesses to 
fi nd q ua l ified cand idates . 

Students ed ucated with in  the state cou ld  be North Dakota 's  g reatest asset for 
workforce recru itment .  Department of Pub l i c  I nstruct ion stat ist ics for 20 1 6-20 1 7  show 
that 37 percent of h ig h  school  g raduates were not pu rsu i ng any type of postsecondary 
ed ucation  fo l lowi ng g rad uat io n .  A scho larsh ip  p rog ram cou ld he lp increase ski l l  leve ls 
and wage-earn i ng  ab i l ity for many of our  state's young people wh i le p rovid i ng  bus i ness 
and i nd ustry with m uch needed workers .  



This approach has been successfu l i n  North Dakota on  a reg iona l  leve l but 
shou ld be opened up  to attract and reta in  add it iona l  students statewide .  A good 
example is the Wi l l iston State Col lege (WSC) Reg iona l  County Grad uate Scho la rsh ip  
p rog ram . E l i g i b i l ity has now expanded to  inc lude h igh school  g raduates and G E D  
rec ip ients from n i ne cou nties i n  western North Dakota a n d  eastern M ontana ,  a n d  the 
p rog ram has been a key factor toward i ncreased enro l lment .  You ng p rofess iona ls  that 
otherwise wou ld  have never thought of Wi l l iston are now choos ing  to attend WSC and 
ga in i ng  exposure to the commun ity. 

Other states , i nc lud ing South Dakota , Tennessee ,  Montana ,  O regon , Ca l iforn ia ,  
Nevada ,  M i nnesota , New York , Arkansas,  Kentucky, De laware , and  Rhode I s land , have 
a l l  ident ified th is as a key to workforce attraction and have imp lemented p rog rams 
s im i la r  to  what has  been out l i ned i n  th i s  b i l l. South Dakota 's Bu i l d  Dakota Scho la rsh ip  
Fund is especia l ly a th reat to  our  workforce as i t  may attract North Dakota students who 
wou ld have otherwise attended North Dakota State Col lege of  Sc ience and entered i nto 
a h ig h-demand career with i n  North Dakota . 

Wash i ngton state has had a scho larsh ip  prog ram for u nderg rad uates pu rsu ing  
h igh  demand STEM and healthcare deg rees s ince 20 1 3 and has ra ised nearly $200 
m i l l ion  in p rivate contribut ions and state match do l lars .  The i r  leg is latu re stud ied the 
p rog ram outcomes i n  20 1 7  and found it to be effective i n  keep ing  ta lent in the i r  state . 
Between 20 1 3  and 201 6 ,  on average,  7 1  percent of part ic ipati ng  g raduates were 
emp loyed with i n  the i r  fie ld of study and 88 percent of these peop le stayed i n  the state . 

The North Dakota Workforce Deve lopment Counc i l  a lso recommended p rovid i ng 
scho larsh ips  to students enteri ng h igh-demand tech n ica l  deg ree p rog rams in i ts recent 
report .  We bel ieve the p rog ram outl i ned i n  th is b i l l ,  o r  a s im i l a r  p rog ra m ,  wou ld  
encourage North Dakota 's youth to  stay with i n  the state and wou ld attract students from 
out-of-state to be ed ucated and p lant roots here .  

Thank you for the  opportun ity to  address the  comm ittee and express support for 
th is b i l l  and for you r  conti n ued comm itment to work ing  together  to add ress North 
Dakota 's workforce needs .  I u rge a do pass on SB 2039 .  

• 

• 



Test imony of Mason Sisk 

Ass i stant  Execut ive D i rector 

Techno logy Cou nc i l  of No rth  Da kota 

In Support of SB 2039 

J a n u a ry 9, 2019 

Cha i rman  Sch a i b l e  and m e m bers of the Sen ate Educat ion Comm ittee : 
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My n a m e  i s  M ason S i s k, ass i stant executive d i rector of the  Techno logy Cou nc i l  of North Da kota 

(Tech N D ) .  I a m  he re today to voice support of H B  2039 .  

Tech N D, fo rm er ly known as  the  I nfo rmat ion Tech no logy Counc i l  of No rth  Da kota ( ITCND), was 

created in 2000 by No rth  Da kota bus in ess, gove rnment a nd  educat ion  l eade rs who recogn ized 

the need  to st rengthen  the state' s i nformat ion tech no logy i n frast ruct u re and repos it ion the 

state as  a n at i o n a l  l e ade r  in IT .  Th e orga n izat ion has s i n ce expa nded  its focus to i n c l ude  

mem be rs from the  tech no logy i n du stry as  a who l e .  Tech ND has  nea r ly 70 member  

o rga n i zat ions, with rep resentat ives from both the  p u b l i c  a nd  p r ivate sector .  

No rth  Da kota 's  tech no l ogy i n d ustry is  st rong  and growi ng .  No rth Da kota has seen an  i n crease 

of mo re t h a n  27 pe rcent in tech no logy occu pat ions over the past d ecade a nd  is  p roj ect ing a 20 

pe rcent i n crease fo r t he  n ext 10 yea rs. With the growth of the i n d u st ry, a sho rtage of a sk i l l ed 

workfo rce has been i d ent ifi ed  a s  one  of t he  top cha l l e nges .  Deve l opment of a h igh-q ua l ity 

workfo rce is vita l  to t h e  fut u re growth of the  state's tech no logy i n d u st ry .  

No rth Da kota cu rrent ly has ove r 900 open comput i ng  jobs, wh ich i s  3 .3 t imes the  average 

d emand  rate .  Yet, No rth  Da kota had  on ly 117  com puter  sc i ence gra d u ates in 20 15 .  With two

yea r  cybe rsecu rity a n d  com p ut i ng  certifi cates ava i l a b l e  t h rough North Da kota i n st i tut ions, the 

scho l a rsh i p  p rogra m o ut l i n ed  i n  th i s  b i l l  wou l d  encou rage more students to p u rsue  the  

com p uter  sc i ence and  cybe rsecu rity fi e l d s  and  he l p  add ress the  workfo rce ch a l l enge i n  our  

i n d u st ry . 

Th e scho l a rs h i p  p rogra m out l i n ed i n  th i s  b i l l  h a s  the  potent i a l  to impact the  n u m be r  on 

students p u rs u i n g  d egrees i n  h igh-d emand career a reas, i n c l u d i ng  techno logy. Therefore, we'd 

u rge you r  favo ra b l e  con s i de rat io n  of SB 2039 .  
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Testimony of E l len  Huber  
Economic Development Association of North Dakota 

In Support of SB 2039 
February 4, 201 9  

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee: 

I 'm E l len Huber, business development d i rector for the C ity of Mandan and 
president of the Economic Development Association of North Dakota (EDND) .  On 
behalf of EDND,  I stand before you i n  support of SB  2039 . 

EDND represents more than 80 large and smal l  and rura l  and u rban economic 
development organ izations on the front l ine of growing bus inesses and commun ities in  
North Dakota . The primary purpose of  the organ ization is to  promote the creation of 
new wea lth throughout North Dakota to develop more vibrant commun ities and improve 
qua l ity of l ife . 

Workforce avai labi l ity is the most sign ificant chal lenge fac ing North Dakota 
businesses , l im iting the growth potentia l  of the state's economy. EDND supports the 
development of workforce attraction ,  development and retention strategies that add ress 
the needs of the state's businesses and industries. As of October 20 1 8 ,  North Dakota 
had an u nemployment rate of 2 .8 percent, wh ich can make it d ifficu lt for businesses to 
find qua l ified cand idates . 

Students educated within the state cou ld be North Dakota's greatest asset for 
workforce recru itment. Department of Publ ic I nstruction statistics for 201 6-201 7 show 
that 37 percent of h igh  school graduates were not pu rsu ing any type of postsecondary 
education fo l lowing graduation .  A scho larsh ip  program cou ld he lp increase ski l l  levels 
and wage-earn ing abi l ity for many of our  state's young people whi le provid ing business 
and industry with much needed workers .  

p l  
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This approach has been successfu l i n  North Dakota on  a reg iona l  level but 
shou ld be opened up  to attract and retai n  add itional  students statewide .  A good 

/ example is the Wi l l i ston State Col lege (WSC) Regional County Graduate Scholarsh ip N{ f J-_ 
program.  E l ig ib i l ity has now expanded to i nclude h igh school g raduates and GED 
recip ients from n i ne  cou nties in  western North Dakota and eastern Montana ,  and  the 
program has been a key factor toward i ncreased enro l lment. Young professionals that 
otherwise wou ld have never thought of Wi l l iston are now choosing to attend WSC and 
ga in ing exposure to the commun ity. 

Other states ,  i nc lud ing  South Dakota , Tennessee, Montana,  Oregon ,  Cal iforn ia ,  
Nevada ,  M innesota , New York, Arkansas, Kentucky, Delaware , and Rhode I sland , have 
a l l  identified th is  as a key to workforce attraction and have implemented programs 
s imi lar  to what has been outl ined i n  th is b i l l .  South Dakota's Bu i ld Dakota Scholarsh ip  
Fund is especia l ly a threat to  our  workforce as i t  may attract North Dakota students who 
wou ld have otherwise attended North Dakota State College of Science and entered i nto 
a h igh-demand career with i n  North Dakota . 

Wash ington state has had a scho larsh ip  program for u ndergraduates pursu ing 
h igh demand STEM and healthcare degrees since 201 3 and has ra ised nearly $200 
mi l l ion in private contribut ions and state match dol lars .  Their leg islature stud ied the 
program outcomes i n  201 7 and fou nd it to be effective i n  keeping ta lent in their state . 
Between 20 1 3  and 201 6 , o n  average,  7 1  percent of participating graduates were 
employed with in  their  field of study and 88 percent of these people stayed i n  the state . 

The North Dakota Workforce Development Cou nci l  a lso recommended provid ing  
scho larsh ips to  students entering h igh-demand techn ical degree programs i n  its recent 
report .  We bel ieve the program out l i ned in th is b i l l ,  or a s imi lar program ,  would 
encourage North Dakota's youth to stay with in the state and would attract students from 
out-of-state to be educated and p lant roots here. 

Thank  you for the opportun ity to address the committee and express support for 
th is b i l l  and for you r  contin ued commitment to working together to add ress North 
Dakota 's workforce needs .  I u rge a do pass on SB 2039. 

• 
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Cha i rman  Ho lm berg and  members of the Sen ate Approp riat ions  com m ittee :  

PO Box 2599 

Bismarck, ND 58502 

701 .355.4458 

office@technd.org 

www.technd.org 

My name  is Mason S i sk, ass istant executive d i rector of the  Techno logy Cou nci l of No rth Da kota 

(Tech N D } .  I am here today to voice s upport of H B  2039. 

Tech N D, fo rmer ly known as the I nfo rmat ion Tech no logy Counc i l  of No rth Da kota ( ITCND }, was 

created i n  2000 by North Da kota bus i n ess, government and  education  leaders who recogn ized 

the need to st rengthen the state's i nfo rmat ion tech no logy i n frastruct u re and repos it ion the 

state as  a nat iona l  l eader  i n  IT .  The o rga n izat ion has  s i n ce expanded  i t s  focus to i n c l ude  

members from the  tech no logy i ndustry as  a who l e .  Tech N D  has  nea r ly 70 member  

orga n i zat ions, with rep resentatives from both the p ub l i c a nd  p rivate sector . 

No rth Da kota's tech no logy i ndu stry i s  st rong and growi ng .  No rth Da kota has seen an  i n crease 

of more than 27 percent i n  tech no logy occupat ions  over the past decade and i s  p roj ect i ng  a 20 

percent i n crease fo r the next 10 yea rs .  With the growth of the i n d ustry, a shortage of a sk i l l ed 

workfo rce has  been i dent ified as one  of the  top cha l l enges .  Deve lopment of a h igh-q u a l ity 

workfo rce is vita l to the  futu re growth of the state's tech no logy i n du stry .  

No rth Da kota cu rrent ly has  over 900 open comput i ng  jobs, which i s  3 .3 t imes the average 

demand  rate .  Yet, No rth Da kota had only 117 computer  sc i ence graduates in 2015 .  With two

yea r cybersecu rity and  computi ng cert if icates ava i l a b l e  th rough North Da kota i n st itut ions, the  

scho l a rsh i p  p rogram out l i ned  i n  th i s  b i l l  wou l d  encou rage more students to  p u rsue  the  

com puter sc ience and  cybersecu rity fi e l d s  a nd  he l p  add ress the  workfo rce cha l l e nge i n  ou r  

i n d u stry. 

The scho l a rsh i p  p rogram out l i n ed i n  th i s  b i l l  has the potent i a l  to impact the n u m be r  on 

students pu rsu i ng  degrees i n  h igh-demand  career a reas, i n c l ud i ng  tech no logy. Therefo re, we'd 

u rge you r  favorab le  cons ide rati on  of SB 2039 .  

p l  
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PROPOSED AM ENDMENT TO SENATE B ILL NO.  2039 p I 

Page 1 ,  line 1 4  after " programs" insert "at any institution of higher 
education in North Dakota" 

Renumber according ly 
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Proposed Amendments to Senate B i l l  2039 

Version 19.0294.02000 

Page 1, Sect ion 1-Lines 5-12 

SECTION 1 .  A new sect ion to chapter 6-09 of  the North Da kota Century Code is created 

and  enacted as fo l lows: 

Sk i l l ed workforce scho la rsh ip program - Deve lopment and  implementation .  

1 .  The  Bank of North Dakota North Dakota Un ive rsity System sha l l  adopt ru les to  develop, implement. 

and  promote, and administer a sk i l led workforce scho la rsh ip program i n  conjunct ion with the North 

Dakota uni•,«ersity system and the workforce education advisory counc i l  and Ba nk  of North Da kota with 

the i ntent of attract ing and reta in i ng students for professiona l o r  techn ica l sk i l l s  i n  h igh demand 

i n  th is state . 

Page 1, Sect ion 4-Lines 19-23 and L ines 1 & 2 on  Page 2 

4. Schola rsh ips must be provided in the form of a grant adm in iste red by the educat iona l  inst itut ion at 

wh ich the student is enro l led .  administered by the Bank of North Dakota . Each qua rter o r  semester the 

Ba n k  of North Dakota sha l l  forwa rd the-amount of the scho l a rsh ips payable under  th i s  sect ion d i rect ly to 

the i n st itut ion in-wh ich the student i s  e n ro l led .  The amount  of the scho la rsh ip is equa l  to the amount 

charged each qua rter or  semester by the educationa l  inst itut ion at which the student is en ro l led for the 

tu it ion, fees, books. and suppl ies requ i red for the qua l ifying educat iona l  program . 

, �  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2039 fj / 
Page 1, line 1, replace "two new sections to chapter 6-09" with "a new section to chapter 

15-10" 

Page 1, remove lines 5 through 23 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 28 with: 

"SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 15-10 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Ski l led workforce scholarship  program - Ski l led workforce scholarship 
fund - State board of  higher education - Continuing appropriation . 

.1. There is created in the state treasury the skilled workforce scholarship 
fund. The fund consists of moneys transferred into the fund by the 
legislative assembly, matching funds received, and scholarship 
repayments. Moneys in the fund are appropriated to the state board of 
higher education on a continuing basis for the purpose of providing grants 
to institutions of higher education related to skilled workforce scholarships. 
Institutions of higher education include institutions under the control of the 
state board of higher education, North Dakota nonpublic accredited 
institutions of higher education, and tribally controlled community colleges. 

2. The state board of higher education shall develop policies to administer a 
skilled workforce scholarship program in cooperation with the Bank of 
North Dakota and the workforce education advisory council. The purpose 
of the skilled workforce scholarship program is to attract and retain 
students for professional or technical skills in high demand in this state. 

� The state board of higher education and the workforce education advisory 
council shall compile a list of qualifying educational programs by August 
first of each year. Qualifying educational programs must be able to be 
completed within four semesters or eight quarters and pertain to the 
technical skills in high demand in this state. 

4. Individuals enrolled in a qualifying educational program in this state may 
apply for a scholarship under this section. Scholarships are limited to the 
amount charged each quarter or semester by the educational institution for 
the tuition, fees, books, and supplies required for the qualifying educational 
program. The scholarships may supplement any other scholarship or grant 
financial aid received by a student to assist the student with the costs of 
the qualifying education program. 

5. To be eligible for a scholarship under this section, a student must maintain 
a 2 .5 cumulative grade point average, based on a 4.0 grading system. A 
student may not receive scholarships under this section for more than the 
equivalent of four semesters of full-time enrollment or eight quarters of 
full-time enrollment. Upon completion a qualifying education program, a 
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student who received a scholarship under this section must remain and 
work in this state for a minimum of three years. 5,8 iJOJ f  

� _, _ J.0 11 
An individual must repay the scholarship pursuant to the terms in the 
individual's scholarship award agreement if the individual fails to maintain a 
2.5 cumulative grade point average while enrolled, discontinues 
attendance before the completion of any semester or quarter for which a 
scholarship has been received, or fails to remain and work in this state for 
at least three years following degree or certificate completion. 

L Each quarter or semester, the state board of higher education shall 
distribute grants to institutions of higher education to provide the amounts 
necessary for the scholarships awarded to the students enrolled in each 
institution. The state board of higher education may distribute grants only 
to the extent that the private sector has provided one dollar of matching 
funds for each dollar of funding provided by the state." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMEN T: 

This amendment consolidates the skilled workforce scholarship program and fund in one 
section of North Dakota Century Code, provides for the State Board of Higher Education to 
administer the program rather than the Bank of North Dakota, and provides other minor 
technical corrections. 

Page No. 2 19.0294.02001 
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N O R T H  D A K O T A 
UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

ACCESS. INNOVATION. EXCELLENCE. 

SB2039 
House Education Committee 

March 5, 201 9  
Lisa A. Johnson, Interim Vice Chancellor for Academic/Student Affairs ,  NDUS 

701 .328.41 43 I lisa .a .johnson@ndus .edu 

Chair Owens and members of the House Education Committee: My name is Lisa Johnson, and I 
serve as the Interim Vice Chancellor for Academic and Student Affairs of the North Dakota 
University System. I am here to provide supportive testimony related to Senate Bill 2039 .  

The goals of this proposed bill are well aligned with the recommendations contained in the North 
Dakota Workforce Development Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis originally prepared in 20 1 7  
by the Legislative Workforce Education Advisory Council .  One year later, those findings were 
similarly affirmed by recommendations contained in the North Dakota Workforce Development 
Council Summary Report citing a "middle skills gap" in the state-or approximately 60% of the 
state' s  labor market. The report further noted that the state "lags other states in identifying and 
addressing the ' technical skills gap"' . . . . and further encouraged the "structural alignment of 
existing resources with additional funding and support of public/private partnerships." 

Members of the Committee, SB2039 does just that and the NDUS further believes that a 
scholarship like this encourages increases in both the completion rates and retention of students 
in North Dakota in a nationally competitive work environment. The proposed bill supports many 
elements of the Governor' s  Main Street Initiative and the Governor' s  Nursing Shortage Task 
Force to attract and retain students not only in nursing, but also many "high demand" jobs in 
both rural and non-rural communities. The NDUS is committed to continued work with Job 
Service of North Dakota and the North Dakota Commerce Department to review and modify the 
parameters that produce the "in demand" occupations list on a regular basis .  It is our intent to 
continue utilization of that process to identify a list of high demand fields on an annual basis for 
the purpose of implementing this scholarship. 

It is important to note that this scholarship, covering the costs of tuition, fees, books, and 
supplies for qualifying educational programs, requires students to maintain a 2 . 5  cumulative 
grade point average, a limited timeframe for completion, and a requirement to live and work in 
North Dakota for a period of three years following degree or certificate completion. Students 
who do not meet these requirements will have the scholarship converted to a loan through the 
Bank of North Dakota. 

The NDUS respectfully recommends a number of relatively minor amendments that are attached 
to this testimony for your consideration. 
This concludes my testimony in support of SB2039, and I will stand for questions or comments 
from the Committee. 

N o rt h  Da kota U n ivers i ty System 
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Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Legislative Management 

(Taxation Committee) 

FIRST ENGROSSMENT 

ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2039 

1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-10 of the North Dakota 

2 Century Code, relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce 

3 scholarship program; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer. 

4 BE IT ENACTED BY TH E LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA : 

5 SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 15-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

6 and enacted as follows: 

7 Skilled workforce scholarship program - Skilled workforce scholarship fund - State 

8 board of higher education - Continuing appropriation. 

9 .1. There is created in the state treasury the skilled workforce scholarship fund. The fund 

1 0  
1 1  

1 2  
1 3  

1 4  
1 5  
1 6  

consists of moneys transferred into the fund by the legislative assembly, matching 

funds received, and scholarship repayments. Moneys in the fund are appropriated to 

the state board of higher education on a continuing basis for the purpose of providing 

grants to institutions of higher eduoation scholarships related to skilled workforce 
soholarshipsneeds. 

Institutions of higher education include institutions under the control of the state board 

of higher education, North Dakota nonpublic accredited institutions of higher 

education, and tribally controlled communitycolleges. 

1 7  2. The state board of higher education shall develop policies to administer a skilled 

1 8  
1 9  
20 
2 1  

workforce scholarship program i n  cooperation with the Bank of North Dakota andthe 

workforce education advisory council. The purpose of the skilled workforce scholarship 

program is to attract and retain students for professional or technical skills in high 

demand in this state. 

22 � The state board of higher education and the workforce education advisory council 

23 shall compile a list of qualifying educational programs byAugust first of eaoh 
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2 

Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 

Qualifying educational programs at the associate level gr below must be able to be 
completed within foursemesters 

or eight quarters and pertain to the technical skills in high demand in this state. 

3 4. Individuals enrolled in a qualifying educational program in this state may apply fora 

4 scholarship under this section. Scholarships are limited to the amount charged each 

5 
e 

7 

8 
9 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 
26 

27 

28 

quarter or semester by the educational institution for the tuition, fees, books, and 

supplies required for the qualifying educational program and is intended to be a last 
dollar scholarshi after other scholarsh i s and rants are a lied. 

supplement any other soholarship or grant finanoial aid roooivod by a student to assist 

tho student with tho oosts of tho qualifying oduoational program. 

5. To be eligible for a scholarship under this section, a student shall maintain a 2.5 

cumulative grade point average, based on a 4.0 grading system. A student may not 

receive scholarships under this section for more than the equivalent of four semesters 

of full-time enrollment or eight quarters of full-time enrollment. Upon completion of a 

qualifying educational program, a student who received a scholarship under this 

section shall remain reside and work in this state for a minimum of three years in a 
hi h-demand field. 

6. An individual shall repay the scholarship pursuant to the terms in the individual's 

scholarship award agreement if the individual fails to maintain a 2.5 cumulative grade 

point average while enrolled, discontinues attendance before the completion of any 

semester or quarter for which a scholarship has been received, or fails to remain and 

work in this state for at least three years following degree or certificate completion. 

L. Each quarter or semester, the state board of higher education shall distribute grants 
funds to 

institutions of higher education to provide the amounts necessaryfor the scholarships 

awarded to the students enrolled in each institution. The state board of higher 

education may distribute grants funds only to the extent that tho pri11ato sootor has 
pro11idod 

one dollar of matchin funds has been rovided wh ich ma include rivatel funded 
institutional scholarships, for each dollar of funding provided by the state. 

SECTION 2. TRANSFER - BAN K  OF NORTH DAKOTA - SKILLED WORKFORCE 

SCHOLARSHIP FUND. The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of $10,000,000, or so 

much of the sum as may be necessary, from the Bank's current earnings and undivided profits 

to the skilled workforce scholarship fund during the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and 
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Support of 5B2039 
provided to  House Education Committee 3-5-19 

Why does North Dakota need a 

• Ski l led Workforce Schola rsh ip  Program? 
�B 1o 3q 

3 - 5., / 9  
J-� 

• 

Meet Workforce Needs 

To better reta i n  and a l ign graduates with workforce demands  many states have deve loped red uced or no-cost 
tu it ion p rogra ms at 2-year  (commun ity and tech n ica l  co l l eges ) .  
North Dakota is in a workforce crisis : 

• 13,300+ job open i ngs a re reported statewide, with 23 of 53  No rth Da kota cou nties report ing  u nemp loyed
pe r-open ing rates of less than 1, wh ich i nd icates more job  open i ngs than res ident l a bo r  supp ly 1 . 

• "M idd l e-ski l l "  jobs requ i r ing ed ucat ion beyond h igh school  but  not a fou r-yea r degree, m a ke u p  the  l a rgest 
pa rt of America's la bor ma rket. In North  Da kota, these careers a ccou nt fo r 60% of the l a bor  ma rket2, a n d  
emp loye rs a re unab l e  t o  fi nd enough suffic ie nt ly t ra i ned workers t o  fi l l  these jobs .  

The Sk i l l ed Workfo rce Scho l a rsh i p  Program wou l d  he lp  No rth Da kota to c lose i ts  workforce shortage ga p t h rough 
attract ing and reta i n i ng students i n  h igh-demand  techn i ca l  ca reers .  

Student Affordabi l ity & Cost Efficiency 

The Sk i l l ed Workfo rce Scho l a rsh i p  P rogram cou l d  imp rove a l l  students' access to educat ion a nd  i nc rease 
afforda b i l ity fo r a l l  students and fam i l ies .  Th is  p rogram is not structu red  l i ke typica l 'scho l a rs h i p' p rogra ms -
students a re not chosen pr ima r i ly on merit o r  i n come status - but rathe r  a re selected based on chosen career path 
and willingness to stay in-state. The Sk i l led Workforce Scho l a rsh i p  P rogram wou l d  supp l ement a nd  com p lement 
North Da kota's  robust student fi nanc i a l  a id p rogra ms by p rovid i ng ' l ast do l l a r' fund i ng, mean i ng  that a student mu st 
exhaust all other sources of financial aid ( i n c l u d i ng fede ra l  Pe l l  G ra nts a n d  other state p rograms) ,  before the 
program is a ccessed .  

Workforce Competition 

More than  20 states/mun ic ipa l it ies have adopted o r  a re cu rrently p i lot i ng  tu it ion-free/prom ise p rograms  i n c l ud i ng 
states su r round i ng No rth Da kota (M i n nesota , South Da kota, a nd  Monta na ) .  The South Da kota Bu i l d  Da kota 
Scho l a rsh i p  i s  u n ique in that it is ava i l ab l e  to both residents and non-residents .  H i stor ica l ly, a bout 70% of students 
that en ro l l  at N DSCS grad uate from a North Da kota high school ;  the majority of the other  30% comes from 
ne ighbor ing states (M i n nesota, South Da kota ,  Montana ) .  S i nce the i ncept ion of the su r round i ng  states' p rogra ms 
there has been a dec l i ne  i n  South Dakota, M i n nesota, a n d  M onta na  students attend i ng N DSCS. 

Attract & Reta in  Graduates 

Students that come from other  states often choose to l ive a nd  work in No rth  Da kota fo l lowing grad uat ion ;  in 2018, 
30% of students from outs ide North Da kota stayed i n  No rth  Da kota fo l lowing graduat ion from N DSCS . 3 The 
M i n nesota COSP and  South Da kota's Bu i l d  Da kota p rogra ms  have the potent i a l  to reduce the n u m be r  of e nt ry- l eve l 
emp loyees enter ing the North Da kota workfo rce th rough N DSCS. 

I nvestment in  the Future 

The costs a ssociated with other  states' no-cost ( p rom ise)  tu it ion p rogra ms va ry based on  the cha racte r ist ics of each 
progra m .  The Sk i l led Workfo rce Scho l a rsh ip  P rogram ca l l s  fo r the workfo rce educat ion adv isory counc i l  to a n n ua l ly 

• 
com pi l e  a l ist of the ed ucationa l p rogra ms that wou l d  q u a l ify . Academ ic  p rogra ms wou l d  need to be com p leted 
with i n  fou r  semesters and students wou ld be req u i red to work i n  North  Da kota for m i n imum of t h ree yea rs 

� fo l lowi ng g ra d uation .  

1 https ://www.ndworkforce inte l l igence .com/adm in/gsipub/htm l a rea/uploads/l m i  ojornd .pdf  
2 https:// m . nat iona  l sk i l  lscoa I i t ion . o  rg/resou rces/pub l  icat ions/2017-m i dd  le-sk i  l l s-fa ct-sheets/fi l e/N orth-Da kota -M i dd  leS k i l  I s . pdf 
3 2018 NDSCS Placement Report 



Improve ND  Cit izens' Socioeconomic Posit ion 

Cit izens  without a co l l ege degree o r  tech n ica l certif icate a re less l i ke ly to earn a fam i ly-susta i n i ng  wage, and more 
• l i ke ly  to requ i re pub l i c  ass ista nce, a nd  socia l services . 

Enhance Educationa l  Outcomes 

I t  is  known that fi nanc i a l  cha l l e nges a re one of the l a rgest non-academic  ba rrie rs to students' success. States that 
have im p lemented these progra ms have experienced an i nc rease i n  student persistence, graduat ion ,  a nd  
en ro l lment . 4 

T E N N E S S E E  

Promise 
16% i n crease i n  

com m u n ity co l l ege 

retention rate 

THE SC IENCE OF SUCCESS. 
North Dakota State College of Science 

The 
Kalamazoo 
Pronfse 
33% i n crease i n  

co l l ege 

completion rate 

John Richman, Ph .D .  

President 
J o h n . R ich man@ndscs . edu  
701 .67 1 . 2221  

fore g o n  
Prom ise 

13% i n crease i n  

com m u n ity co l l ege 

enro l lments 

Test imony Provided by : Jane Vangsness Frisch, Ph .D .  - Vice President for Student Affairs 

4 http:// co l  l egep rom ise . o rg/wp-content/ u ploads/2018/12/CPC-An n ua  I Re port-Web-Pages-2 .  pdf 

@ 



HB 1171 

.()),] t' ( 
� \ 

Purpose Attract a nd reta i n  students fo r 
profess iona l  or  techn ica l ski l l s  
i n  h igh  demand  

Amount ( F rom BND  Ca p ita l )  $5 M i l l io n  
Per Student Annua l  $5,675 
Tota l $17,000 
When Received After grad uat ion 
Applied Student loa n 
Criteria 2 .75 G PA 
Matching Contribution 1 . 1  for each do l l a r  ra ised for 

private secto r 
Claw back 

Administrator Ba nk  of North Dakota 

Cons iderat ions :  

• Student perspective 
• Recru itments i nto h igh need progra ms 
• Student loan debt taken out / E l ig i b i l ity 
• 2039 provides a bette r bas is for success for p rogram i ntent 

SB 2039 

Sa me 

$ 10 M i l l ion  
4 Semesters fu l l  t ime 
Tu it ion ,  fees, books, s upp l ies  
At  e n ro l lment 
Scho l a rs h i p  
2 . 5  G PA 
Sa me 

Fa l l s  be low 2 . 5  G PA, 
d iscont inues  e n ro l lment, leaves 
the state with 3 yea rs to 
grad uate 

H igher  Ed 
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Mr.  E I Roy Bu rkle 
Executive Di rector 

_sm_a_l l _O_rg_a_n_iz_e_d_S_ch_o_o_ls ___ /�  
Mr. Bra ndt Dick 
President 

1419 9th Ave NE 
Jamestown, 58401 

Ebu rk lendsos@gmai l .com 

701-230-1973 

March 2, 2019 

PO Box 100 - 123  Summit Street 
Underwood, ND 5857 
Brandt .D ick@underwoodschool .org 

701-442-3274 

Cha i rma n  Owens,  a n d  Mem bers of the N D  House Educat ion Com m ittee, 

M rs. Janet Brown 
Business Manager 
925 Riverview Drive 
Va l l ey City, ND 58072 
ja net. brown@k12 .nd .us  

701-845-2910 

For the record, my n ame  i s  M r. E I Roy Bu rk l e, Executive D i rector of No rth  Dakota Sma l l  

Organ i zed Schoo ls  ( N DSOS ) .  

N DSOS supports SB  2039 - sk i l l ed workforce scho l a rs h i ps .  With the  extreme shortage of  s ki l l ed  

l a bor  i n  ou r  State, p rovi d i ng scho la rsh i ps that req u i re comp l eters to rema i n  and  work i n  North  

Da kota for a m i n imum  of th ree years i s  a t rue 'grow you r  own'  a p p roach .  Ut i l i z i ng  p rofits from 

the  Ba n k  for No rth Da kota on ly to the extent that  the  p rivate sector  h a s  p rovided  a one  do l l a r  

o f  match i ng  fu nds  for each  do l l a r  provid ed by the  State p rovides a fi n a nc i a l  p a rtne rsh i p .  

Tha n k  you for you r  t ime  a nd  I s h a l l  stand  for q uest ions .  

Respectfu l ly, 

sf S S11;: ��ir @]7,,,i{e 

M r. E I Roy Bu rk le ,  Execut ive D i rector 

N D  Sma l l  Organ ized Schools 

1419 9th Ave N E  

J amestown ,  N D  58401 

Cel l :  701-230- 1973 Ema i l  ebu rkl endsos@gma i l . com 

Revised March 2 ,  2019 

F i le :  SB 2039 Workforce Scho larsh ip  19.024.0500 House Ed March 5 

Region 1 

Mr. Tim Ho lte, Supt .  Sta n ley 

Mr. John Gruenberg, Supt .  Powers Lake 

Region 4 

Mr. Kel ly Koppinger, Supt. New Eng land 

Mr. J im G ross, Supt .  Se lfridge 

Board of Directors 

Region 2 

Mr. Jeff Hag ler, Supt .  North Sta r 

Mr .  Steven He im,  Anamoose & Drake 

Region 5 

Mr. Joel Lerner, Bd .  Member Ca rrington 

Mr .  Brandt Dick, Supt. Underwood 

Region 3 

Mr.  Fra n k  Sch i l l ,  Supt .  Edmore 

Mr .  Dean Ra lston, Supt .  Drayton 

Region 6 

Mr.  M itch Car lson, Supt .  La Moure 

Dr. Steven Johnson, Supt. Lisbon 

The mission of NDSOS is to provide leadership for the smal l/rural schools in  North Dakota and to support legislation favorable to their 

phi losophy while opposing legislation that is harmful .  
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION OF NORTH DAKOTA = 

ED§ 
§ND 
= Po BOX 1 091 • BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 58502 

Testimony of E l len H u ber 
Economic Development Association of North Dakota 

I n  Support of SB 2039 
March 5 ,  201 9 

Cha i rman Owens and members of the House Ed ucation Comm ittee :  

I 'm E l len Huber ,  bus iness development d i rector for the C ity of Mandan and 
pres ident of the Economic Development Association of North Dakota (EDND) .  On 
behalf of EDND ,  I stand before you i n  support of SB  2039 .  

EDND represents more than 80 large and sma l l  and ru ra l  and u rban economic 
deve lopment organ izat ions on the front l i ne  of g rowing bus inesses and commun it ies i n  
North Dakota . The pr imary purpose of  the  organ izat ion is to  p romote the  creat ion of 
new wealth throughout North Dakota to develop more v ibrant commun it ies and improve 
qua l ity of l ife . 

Workforce ava i lab i l ity is the most s ign ificant cha l lenge fac ing North Dakota 
bus inesses , l im it ing the g rowth potent ia l  of the state's economy. EDND supports the 
deve lopment of workforce attract ion ,  development and retent ion strategies that add ress 
the needs of the state's bus i nesses and ind ustries .  As of October 20 1 8 , North Dakota 
had an unemp loyment rate of 2 . 8  percent, which can make it d ifficu lt  for bus inesses to 
fi nd qua l ified cand idates . 

Students educated with in the state cou ld  be North Dakota's g reatest asset for 
workforce recru itment. Department of Pub l i c  I nstruct ion statist ics for 20 1 6-20 1 7  show 
that 37 percent of h igh school g rad uates were not pu rsu i ng any type of postsecondary 
ed ucation fo l lowing g rad uation .  A scho larsh ip  p rog ram cou ld  he lp  i ncrease ski l l  leve ls 
and wage-earn ing ab i l ity for many of our state's young people wh i le  p rovid ing  bus i ness 
and industry with much needed workers . 



This approach has been successfu l i n  North Dakota on a reg iona l  leve l but 
shou ld be opened up  to attract and reta in  add it ional students statewide .  A good 
example is the Wi l l iston State Col lege (YVSC) Reg ional  County Graduate Scholarsh i p  
prog ram .  E l ig i b i l ity has  now expanded to  i nclude h igh  school g rad uates and GED 
rec ip ients from n i ne counties i n  western North Dakota and  eastern Montana ,  and  the 
prog ram has been a key factor toward increased enro l lment .  Young profess ionals that 
otherwise wou ld  have never thought of Wi l l iston are now choos ing to attend WSC and 
ga in ing exposure to the commun ity . 

Other states ,  i nc lud ing  South Dakota , Tennessee , Montana ,  Oregon , Cal iforn ia ,  
Nevada ,  M innesota , New York , Arkansas , Kentucky, Delaware ,  and Rhode Is land , have 
a l l  identified th is as a key to workforce attract ion and have imp lemented p rog rams 
s im i lar  to what has been out l i ned i n  th is b i l l .  South Dakota 's Bu i ld Dakota Scholarsh ip  
Fund i s  especia l ly a th reat to  our  workforce as  i t  may attract North Dakota students who 
wou ld  have otherwise attended North Dakota State Col lege of Science and entered i nto 
a h ig h-demand career with i n  North Dakota . 

Wash ington state has had a scholarsh ip  prog ram for underg rad uates pursu ing 
h ig h  demand STEM and hea lthcare deg rees s ince 201 3 and has ra ised nearly $200 
m i l l ion i n  p rivate contribut ions and state match dol lars .  Their  leg is latu re stud ied the 
p rog ram outcomes i n  20 1 7  and found it to be effective in  keeping ta lent i n  the i r  state . 
Between 20 1 3  and 201 6 ,  on average,  7 1  percent of part ic ipat ing g raduates were 
emp loyed with i n  the i r  fie ld of study and 88 percent of these people stayed i n  the state . 

The North Dakota Workforce Development Counc i l  a lso recommended provid ing 
scho larsh ips to students enter ing h ig h-demand techn ica l  deg ree prog rams i n  its recent 
report .  We bel ieve the p rogram outl i ned in this b i l l ,  or  a s im i la r  prog ram ,  would 
encou rage North Dakota 's youth to stay with i n  the state and wou ld attract students from 
out-of-state to be ed ucated and p lant roots here .  

Thank you for t he  opportu n ity to  add ress the comm ittee and  express support for 
th is b i l l  and for you r  conti n ued comm itment to work ing together to add ress North 
Dakota 's workforce needs .  I u rge a do pass on SB 2039 . 

• 
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Test imony of Mason Sisk 

Ass i stant Execut ive D i rector 

Techno logy Coun ci l  of North  Da kota 

In Support of SB 2039 

Ma rch 5, 2019 

Cha i rman  Owens and mem bers of the House Educat ion Com m ittee :  

S B  �0"1><i 
3-S - 1 '1  

1ili> 
PO Box 2599 

Bismarck, ND 58502 

701 .355.4458 

office@technd.org 

www.technd.org 

My name  i s  M ason S i sk, a ss i stant executive d i rector of the Techno logy Cou nc i l  of North  Da kota 

(Tech N D) .  I am he re today to voice support of H B  2039.  

Tech N D, fo rmerly known as the  I n format ion Techno logy Counc i l  of No rth Da kota ( ITCN D), was 

created in 2000 by No rth Da kota bus i ness, government and  educat ion l eaders who recogn ized 

the n eed to st rengthen  the state's i nfo rmat ion tech no logy i n frast ruct u re and repos it ion the 

state as  a n at i ona l  l eader  in IT .  The o rgan izat ion has  s i nce expa nded  its focus to i n c l ude  

mem bers from the  tech no logy i n du stry as  a who le .  TechN D  has  nea r ly 70 member  

o rga n i zat ions, with rep resentat ives from both the p u b l ic a nd  p rivate sector .  

No rth Da kota's tech no logy i n d u stry i s  st rong and growi ng .  No rth Dakota has seen a n  i ncrease 

of more than  27 percent in tech no logy occu pat ions  over the past decade and i s  p roject ing a 20 

percent i n crease fo r the n ext 10 yea rs .  With the growth of the i n du st ry, a shortage of a sk i l l ed  

workforce ha s  been i dent ifi ed  as  one  of  t he  top  cha l l enges .  Deve lopment of  a h igh-q u a l ity 

workforce is vita l  to t he  futu re growth of the  state's tech no logy i n du stry .  

No rth Da kota cu rrent ly has over 900 open comput ing  jobs, wh ich i s  3 .3 t imes the average 

demand  rate .  Yet, No rth  Da kota had only 117 com puter  sc i ence gradu ates i n  2015 .  With two

yea r  cybe rsecu r ity a nd  com p ut ing  cert ificates ava i l a b l e  th rough No rth Dakota i n st itut ions, the 

scho l a rsh i p  p rogram out l i n ed i n  th i s  b i l l  wou l d  encou rage more students to p u rsue  the 

com puter sc ience and cybe rsecu rity fie l d s  and he l p  add ress the  workforce cha l l enge i n  o u r  

i n d u stry .  

The scho l a rs h i p  p rogram out l i n ed i n  th is b i l l  has the potent ia l  to impact the n u mber  of students 

p u rsu i ng  degrees in h igh-demand  career a reas, i n c l u d i ng techno logy. Therefore, we'd u rge 

you r  favorab l e  cons i de rat ion of SB 2039 .  
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Chairman Owens ,  members of the committee ,  for the record my name is Cambree Smith and I serve as 
the Vice President of the North Dakota Student Association ,  a statewide organization that represents 
the voice of North Dakota ' s  45 ,000 public college and university students .  This testimony serves to 
support Senate Bill 2039 .  

Senate Bill 2039 would allow students, pu rsuing high-demand careers in the state of North Dakota , to 
receive a workforce development scholarship for up to fou r  semesters . This provides the necessary 
means for students to focus on the final steps of schooling without the additional fiscal stresses of 
tu ition . 

Students are faced with many obstacles and concerns-as seniors even more so.  Seniors must decide 
what lies ahead in their futu re : where they will live , where they will work, how to pay off their debt, along 
with many personal life decisions .  At a time when our  state is facing economic downfall as a result of 
low oil and agricultu ral commodity prices ,  North Dakota and students face even more problems . For 
students that means fewer degree offerings , professors leaving, and a less competitive academic 
playing field all around .  For North Dakota that means at least 1 5 , 000 jobs remaining unfilled, with 75-
percent requiring less than a four-year degree .  

When we think of  students ,  we often think of  schooling being their fulltime job ;  however, students a re 
often bu rdened with the same costs associated with being an  adult like any one else in this room. They 
experience the stresses of paying the cost of living: rent ,  utilities ,  food, the expenses that go along with 
owing a car, and much more . Some nontraditional students may pay an additional cost associated with 
having a family , like childcare or the medical costs of a family member that has fallen ill .  How can a 
student pay for all these costs along with tu itions ,  books, and fees? For many that means being a full
time student and full-time employee . This also means their full attention is not going towards their 
education-where it should be. For those reasons above and for the many u nexpected situations that 
arise ,  many students drop out of school-some even a year ,  semester, o r  few months prior to 
graduation .  With this scholarship ,  students will be able to complete their schooling and fill the in
demand positions North Dakota desperately needs filled. 

Through this program, this list of burdens may lessen for students and the state of North Dakota . This 
scholarsh ip will not only benefit students by alleviating financial bu rdens but will benefit the state in a 
multitude of ways as well . The first, and most obvious ,  is by filing in demand positions across the state 
of North Dakota . The second is a more lasting effect , by keeping students in the state of North Dakota 
for three years they will create a sense of community, and,  thus ,  be more likely to stay in the state after 
their commitment is fulfilled. This will benefit the state in many sectors . 

For these reasons ,  the North Dakota Students Associations spent extensive time over the cou rse of two 
General Assembly meetings ,  to formally approve a resolution deeming it critical to develop a workforce 
development scholarship-for the benefit of both the state and students. As such , we u rge you to 
support the creation of a workforce development scholarship as well. Thank you for listening and you r  
time today . 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2039 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BI LL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact two new sections to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
the development and implementation of a skilled workforce student loan repayment 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide for a transfer; to provide an 
expiration date; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEM BLY OF NORTH DAKOTA :  

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Skilled workforce student loan repayment program - Development and 
implementation . 

.1. The Bank of North Dakota shall adopt rules to develop, implement, 
promote, and administer a skilled workforce student loan repayment 
program in conjunction with the North Dakota university system and the 
North Dakota workforce development council with the intent of attracting 
and retaining individuals for professional or technical skills in high demand 
in this state. 

2. The North Dakota workforce development council in cooperation with job 
service North Dakota shall use available labor market information to 
determine annually the eligible high demand and emerging occupations in 
this state. 

3. �-8-1:ffiivefSit.y--system� and the North Dakota workforce 
development council shall compile a list of qualifying educational programs 
by April first of each year. Qualifying educational programs may include 
degree or certificate programs. 

4. Graduates of qualifying educational programs from institutions or entities in 
this state may apply for the skilled workforce student loan repayment 
program. To be eligible to receive student loan repayment grants under the 
program, the applicant: 

Must have successfully completed a qualifying educational program 
from a Bank of North Dakota-approved institution or entity after 
January 1, 2019; 

2 . s  
Must have maintained at least a H5' grade point average, based on a 
4.0 grading system; 

Must have a student loan with the Bank of North Dakota or other 
participating lender: 
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d. Following completion of a qualifying educational program must remain 
and work in this state in an eligible high-demand or emerging 
occupation: and 

e. Must have met and shall continue to meet any requirements 
established by rule. 

5. The Bank of North Dakota shall adopt rules to ensure compliance with 
residency and occupation requirements after completion of the qualifying 
educational program. 

6. The Bank of North Dakota shall distribute student loan repayment grants 
from the skilled workforce student loan repayment program fund directly to 
the Bank of North Dakota or other participating lender to repay outstanding 
student loan principal balances for eligible applicants. The maximum 
annual student loan repayment grant amount for which an applicant may 
qualify is five thousand six hundred sixty-seven dollars, or one-third of the 
applicant's outstanding student loan principal balance, whichever is less. 
The maximum total student loan repayment grant amount for which any 
applicant may qualify is seventeen thousand dollars. 

7 .  I f  an individual is  receiving loan forgiveness under any other provision, the 
individual may not receive a student loan repayment grant under this 
section during the same application year. 

IL The skilled workforce student loan repayment program must be a joint 
public and private effort. The Bank of North Dakota shall provide one dollar 
of funding for each one dollar of funding raised from the private sector. 

9. The North Dakota university system in cooperation with the North Dakota 
workforce development council shall seek private matching funds for the 
skilled workforce student loan repayment program. Any matching funds 
received must be deposited in the skilled workforce student loan 
repayment program fund. 

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Skilled workforce student loan repayment program fund established -
Continuing appropriation. 

The skilled workforce student loan repayment program fund is established as a 
revolving fund. All moneys deposited or transferred into the fund and interest earned on 
moneys in the fund are appropriated for the purposes of section 1 of this Act. 

SECTION 3 .  TRANSFER - BAN K OF NORTH DAKOTA - SKILLED 
WORKFORCE STUDENT LOAN REPAYMENT PROGRAM FUND. The Bank of North 
Dakota shall transfer the sum of $5,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, from the Bank's current earnings and undivided profits to the skilled 
workforce student loan repayment program fund during the period beginning with the 
effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 4. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 2 of this Act is effective through 
June 30, 2021, and after that date is ineffective. 
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SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure. "  

Renumber accordingly 
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